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The Annual Report is presented in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 
Act No. 56 of 2003.  Section 1.7. 

Table 6 of this report presents the statutory Annual Report process and timelines to be followed.

Mr SG Simpson - Acting Municipal Manager

Corner, Somme and Dick Street, HOWICK (KZN), 3290
Tel: +27 33 239 9266
Fax: +27 33 330 4183

Email: manager@umngeni.gov.za



PAGE
Acronyms 1

CHAPTER 1 2

Component A: Mayor’s Foreword 2

Component B: Executive Summary 3

Municipal Manager’s Overview 3

Municipal Functions, Population and 

Environmental Overview 4

Service Delivery Overview 10

Financial Health Overview 12

Organisational Development Overview 13

Auditor-General’s Report 13

Statutory Annual Report Process 14

CHAPTER 2: GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 15

Component A:  Political and Administrative 15

Governance 15

Political Governance 15

Administrative Governance 19

Component B: Intergovernmental Relations 20

Intergovernmental Relations 20

Component C: Public Accountability 
and Participation 20

Public Meetings 21

IDP Participation and Alignment  26

Component D: Corporate Governance 27

Risk Management 27

Anti-Corruption and Fraud 27

Supply Chain Management 27

By-Laws 28

Websites 29

Public Satisfaction on Municipal Services 29

Audit Committee Report 30

CHAPTER 3: SERVICE DELIVERY 
PERFORMANCE REPORT 32

Component A: Basic Services 34

Basic Services 34

Electricity 35

Waste Management 36

Housing 38

Free Basic Services and Indigent Support 40

Component B: Road Transport 41

Roads 41

Waste Water (Storm-Water Drainage) 42

Transport (Vehicle Licensing) 43

Component C: Planning and Development
Planning 44

Local Economic Development 44

Component D: Community & Social Services 47

Cemeteries and Crematoriums 47
Museums 48
Libraries 48
Child Care; Aged Care; Social Programmes 48
Component E: Environmental Protection
Pollution Control 52
Bio-Diversity; Landscape (Incl. Open Spaces) 52
Component F: Security and Safety 52
Police 52
Other (Disaster Management, Animal Licensing 
and Control of Public Nuisances and Other) 53
Component G: Sports and Recreation 54
Sport and Recreation 54
Component H: Corporate Policy Offices 
and Other Services 54
Executive and Council 54
Financial Services 55
Information and Communication 
Technology (ICT) Services 57
Supply Chain Management 58
Component I: Introduction to the 
Municipal Personnel 58
Managing the Municipal Workforce 59
Performance Rewards 59
Capacitating the Municipal Work Force 60
Employee Expenditure 63
Component J: Organisational Performance 63
Section 2 64
CHAPTER 4: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 71
CHAPTER 5: REPORT OF THE 
AUDITOR-GENERAL AND ACTION PLAN 128

p⅞₅₂₁.₀₆

AC: Audit Committee 
AG: Auditor General 
CFO: Chief Financial Officer 
DORA: Division of Revenue Act 
IDP: Integrated Development Plan 
IA: Internal Audit 
IFC: Interim Finance Committee
KPI: Key Performance Indicator
MM: Municipal Manager 
MANCO: Management Committee 
MFMA: Municipal Finance Management Act
PMS: Performance Management System
SCM: Supply Chain Management 
WSP: Workplace Skills Plan 

r₂₁₇⅔₁₇₆

`



r₂₀₃₂₁⅔₁₇dpid1⅜.₂₅r₆du₂₅⅔¢₂₅⅓

The guideline, the format and the content of the Annual Report is largely prescribed
by Section 46 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (No: 32 of 2000) and
Sections 121 and 127 (2) of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management
Act (No: 56 of 2003). 

The aforementioned legislations compel the Municipality to prepare an Annual Report
for each financial year and for the Mayor to table such a report in Council within seven
months after the end of each financial year.

The responsibility we have as Council is one of honour as we have been tasked by
the electorate to provide our communities with quality, responsive and accountable
service delivery as well as development that is beneficial to our communities.  

The responsibilities conferred upon us by the electorate is not a task that we have
taken lightly as this Council.  We have leapt into the role conscious of the fact that
our communities deserve from us our utmost dedication to each task, frugal account-
ability on expenditure as we strive to improve and accelerate service delivery.  

The apex of our oversight role as this Council has been accountability. This has been
evident in the manner with which we have assessed, interrogated and approved
expenditures on matters set to advance the needs of our communities. 

Presenting the 2014/2015 Annual Report, in it, uMngeni Municipality sets out the performance highlights and financial
management.

This timely, thorough and transparent reporting of the highlights and challenges experienced is intended to give all the
people of uMngeni, our colleagues in the higher spheres of government, current and potential investors insight into our
approach to governance and service delivery. 

The 2014/2015 Annual Report is a culmination of the implementation of the Council’s adopted Integrated Development
Plan (IDP), Budget and Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) for the financial year under review. In
essence, the report is an account of uMngeni Municipality’s achievements, and as with any measuring tool, it also assists
in identifying our successes and challenges. 

This report is therefore aimed at attesting to the collective efforts of the administrative and political arms of the munic-
ipality to progressively address the expectations of our people. 

Of course there remain still the triple challenges of poverty, unemployment and inequality that the municipality has to
take into account when delivering services and this has to be balanced with distributing services equally to all commu-
nities under uMngeni.

Moreover there is the historical challenge of underdevelopment, intermittent maintenance of our infrastructure that the
municipality’s political and administrative arms are committed to overcoming. 

Through innovation and unwavering commitment, the municipality certainly rings true the notion that ‘development is
not an event but a process’. This requires multiple resources and effective leadership. As the municipality we are certain
that the measures we have put in place to address these challenges will bear fruit sooner than anticipated. 

We remain committed and steadfast as Council and administration in realizing our vision of making our service delivery
strides “people centred” and enhance development in uMngeni that will yield positive spin-offs for the benefit of our
communities.
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The year under review signified a turning point for the municipality in a number of areas of
performance, the finance section received great support from the Treasury unit of the
municipal support.  The output in this regard was demonstrated when the unit took full
control of the finalization of the Annual Financial Statements, consolidated the performance
report and the governance reports for audit purposes, without any assistance from Treasury
or consultants.  This signifies the coming of age of the municipality and the self-confidence
and self-reliance being built to take the municipality to the next levels.

This confidence is also touching the other units and if they all work in unison the goal of a
clean audit will be realized much sooner.  The financial oversight played by the Council in
giving direction and guidance to the management of the finances went a long way to ensure
stability and sustainability of the municipal finances.  The overall service delivery performance
of the municipality was characterized by both the achievements and challenges.

štł˘xrtdst₡x˘tł¯d¡ł˜vłtšš

There were a number of areas where remarkable achievement was achieved, like the
planning unit. The promulgation of the new legislation the Spatial Planning and Land use
Management Act (Act 16 of 2014) SPLUMA, the shared services function led by uMngeni
Municipality saw the facilitation of the implementation of the new act.  The municipal team
facilitated the finalization of the Draft Joint Municipal Planning Tribunal Business Plan and the

establishment of the Joint Municipal Planning Board.  This also culminated in the development of the SPLUMA by-Laws, the
recruitment of the members of the Joint Municipal Planning Tribunal.

The growing number of housing and business development in the municipality indicated the growth of the local economy and the
turning phase of the municipality which is now attracting the high end and middle income home owners who plan to retire in the
municipality.  This signifies the increase in the projected revenue in the coming years.

The setting up of the disaster management centre and the development of the strategy to deal with disasters and compliance with
the requirements of the Disaster management Act.

Long term engagements with the Department of Human Settlements has finally yielded some positive  outcomes as it finally
unlocked the implementation of the five projects including the resolution of the old Khayelisha projects that has been held by the
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) challenges.  To this end the Department has given the municipality the go ahead to appoint
implementing agents to speed up the planning and the construction of the long outstanding houses.

The roll out of the electricity meters has been on going and significant progress has been made in the electrification of the houses
in the municipality running just above 78%.  The changing national policies regarding the rectification of poorly built houses did
put some brakes on the rectification plans for the houses that were built in the early days of the housing development

The downside to this achievement is the continued theft of electricity by known communities.  A number of interventions including
the campaigns to deter this scourge did not yield much positive results.  This has created revenue generation challenges for the
municipalities making the provision of electricity much costlier that the recovery rate.   The uMgungundlovu District Municipality on
the other hand, as a water and sanitation authority, has made significantly good progress in the delivery of water which currently
stands above 80%, and the delivery of sanitation has also been improving at a pleasing rate and it continues to improve exponentially. 

The land for development purposes is a big challenge in the municipality.  The bulk of the land belongs to the national and provincial
departments and the remainder is in the hands of the private individuals and traditional land.  Some of the challenges experienced
by the municipality emanate from the poor negotiations between municipality and Ingonyama Trust Board.  Significant progress
has been made to access land for a number of initiative such as the taxi rank, Agripark and skills centre are being negotiated with
the National and Provincial departments of Public Works.  The delays in these negotiations undermines the delivery and the timing
of the implementation of the projects in the Integrated Development Plan (IDP).

The biggest challenge facing the municipality is the poor roads. The improvement and maintenance of the roads is hamstrung by
the inadequate budget from poor collections and non-payment for services.  The potholes in the municipality requires other
strategies that require adequate sums of funding.  In conclusion plans are afoot to turn the situation around and to provide relief
to the affected communities.
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“By 2030, uMngeni Municipality will be a people focused, efficient and cost effective municipality able to provide quality
services and sustainable socio-economic development”

1xššx˜Rp

uMngeni Municipality will ensure community participation in all projects; improve the skills of the municipal staff; ensure
sound financial governance; address infrastructure needs and sustainable service and enhance economic development.

₡˜rp₡xž¯

uMngeni Local Municipality is one of the seven local municipalities within uMgungundlovu District Municipality (UMDM)
in KwaZulu-Natal. uMngeni Municipality comprises Howick, Hilton, the World’s View area, the small towns and settle-
ments of Nottingham Road, Lidgetton West, and Lion’s River, Balgowan, Fort Nottingham, Dargle, Curry’s Post,
Mpophomeni and a substantial amount of farmland. The Municipal area covers 1 564 square kilometers. The Munici-
pality’s Head Office is located in Howick, along the N3 (Durban to Johannesburg) within the eThekwini – Msunduzi –
uMngeni Economic Development Corridor. There are three official languages that are mainly spoken in the area, being:
English; Zulu; and Afrikaans.  

st1˜vłp¡wxrš
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According to the South African 2011 census, uMngeni municipality has an estimated population of 92 710, with black
Africans constituting 75%, the white population being 19.4%, 3.8% Indians and 1.5% coloureds (Statistics SA: 2013).
uMngeni Municipality is made up of a mix of urban and rural communities. According to uMngeni Municipality’s
Integrated Development Plan (2013/2014:1), the municipality is characterised by high potential agricultural land, the
primary source supporting the commercial agricultural sector with agriculture being the largest employer. 
The municipality’s population growth rate is 2.27%.  The total unemployment rate is 23.9%.

Rp₈₀⅝⅔₅d₂⁰d⁵₂₈₆⅔⁵₂⁹⅓₆

Based on the 2011 census data (Statistics SA: 2013) there are approximately 30,490 households in the uMngeni area,
with the household size of between two and three persons per house.  

1 Population data obtained from Statistics SA 2013
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uMngeni Municipality continues to strive in its efforts to ensure access to basic services through facilitation as well as
direct service delivery.  This includes provision of proper housing, provision of water and proper sanitation, electrification,
proper road infrastructure as well as waste management. 

prrtššdž˜dˇpžtłdpRpsdšpRpxžpžx˜Rp

According to the 2011 census report, uMngeni Municipality shows the highest proportion of the population who has
access to proper sanitation, with 54,8% of households having access to a flush toilet connected to sewerage. 
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There is reasonably high access to electricity, with 85.5% of households using electricity for lighting. Chart 4 below
shows that the municipality has made substantial progress in ensuring access/provision of electricity to a number of
households within the municipality.

Financial year 2014/2015 saw some challenges in supplying new connections of electricity to the indigent community,
however the indigent register was monitored throughout the year and over 2000 households benefited from the free
basic electricity.

One of the biggest challenges faced by the municipality over the years is electricity losses due to electricity theft. This
has a huge negative impact for the municipality as we are still expected to settle the electricity usage with ESKOM on
a monthly basis.  In the year 2013/2014, the municipality initiated a ‘stop electricity theft’ campaigned aimed at eradi-
cating electricity theft; however the campaign eventually had to be suspended due to challenges experienced.
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52.5% households have access to weekly refuse removal.  However, 67.90% refuse is disposed weekly.  The diagram
below depicts the refuse disposal trends.
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A number of service delivery projects were seen to completion by the end of the financial year 2014/2015. The projects
are presented in table one below.
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Health Services within uMngeni Municipality are mainly provided by the Department of Health through provision of clinics
and mobile clinics.  The following Health facilities are found in the area.  The list includes private institutions, currently
operating within uMngeni Municipality:

• Hilton Life Hospital

• uMngeni Hospital

• Medi-Clinic Private Hospital

• Provincial Clinics (Mpophomeni, Howick and Balgowan Clinics)

• Mobile Clinic Ports

PROJECTS COST WARDS

ELECTRIFICATION:

Hiltonian Society R450 000.00 on DoE Ward 12

Gamalakhe R400 000.00 on DoE Ward 4

Hawkstone R148 000.00 on DoE Ward 5

ROADS:

Mpophomeni Roads and storm water - R16 000 000.00 on MIG Ward 8, 9, 10 and 11
Phase 3 (100% Completion) 

Midlands construction of Cosmo Impala Road 
(100% completion) R998 471.00 on MIG Ward 2

Upgrade Road P390/D1127 (99% Completion) R15 000 000.00 on NDPG Ward 12



HOUSING:

Cedara-Khanya Village - Funding has been obtained, road infrastructure is underway. Ward 7
Finalising approval of plans.

Formalising Lutchman - Awaiting appointment of the Implementing Agent Ward 4

Human Settlement Ward 9

Provision of electricity (prepaid and conventional meters) continues to be one of the municipality’s priorities.  Waste
management was carried out through on-going refuse collection, recycling (in partnership with Wildlands), as well as the
EPWP programme funded by the Department of COGTA.  

uMgungundlovu District Municipality
(UMDM) is responsible for provision of
water within uMngeni area.
Furthermore UMDM is also respon-
sible for environmental health services
for uMngeni Municipality.  On the
other hand, Msunduzi Municipality
provides electricity within the Hilton
area of uMngeni Municipality.
Therefore, strengthening intergovern-
mental relations with these municipal-
ities is essential in ensuring that
service delivery is uninterrupted. 

HOUSING PROJECTS:

Hiltonian Housing Projects (Phase 3) - 98% R2 752 411.00 Ward 12
Completion (27 units built to completion)

Nxamalala/Inadi Housing project (100% completion) Ward 9

ž⅜⅝⁹⅔daidš⅔₅₉⁶⅞⅔d⅓⅔⁹⁶₉⅔₅.d₃₅₂⁷⅔⅞₇₆d⁶₁d₃₅₂⁴₅⅔₆₆

PROJECTS COST WARDS

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS (Tourism Sites):
(the following projects not only contributed to enhancing investment promotion but also opened up job 
opportunities for the residents of uMngeni Municipality)

Mandela Capture Site (construction of exhibition 
centre) – (55% complete) R32 312 117.00 Ward 9

ROADS:

Khayelisha Storm water project: R14 000 000.00 on MIG Ward 1

Storm water Retention Dam (100% completion)

Pump station (100% completion)

Pipeline (Awaiting way-leave agreement)

Khanya Village Access Road (80% completion) 2013/2014 funds used Ward 7
from capital expenditure

1⅜.₂₅r₆du₂₅⅔¢₂₅⅓d⅜₁⅓dt$⅔⅞₈₇⁶₉⅔dš₈₀₀⅜₅.ds⅞₂₁₇⁶₁₈⅔⅓t

for the year ended 30 June 2015

``



`₎cdduxRppRprxp₡dwtp₡žwd˜˘tł˘xtˇ

u⁶₁⅜₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d₂₉⅔₅₉⁶⅔¢

The Interim Finance Committee, call centre, debt collection (through attorneys), disconnections for non-payment, relief
for indigent residents, credit control subcommittee are cash flow management and revenue enhancement measures
put in place by Council to leverage the municipality’s financial status. 

The financial ratios reflect a very positive picture that the municipality
will eventually reach financial stability.

Liquidity ratios:

Liquidity ratios: 2014/2015

a. Acid Test Ratio = Current Assets less Inventories/ Current 
Liability
=  124 905 435 – 31 866 000 / 51 077 578
=  1:1.82

b. Current Ratio = Current Assets/ Current Liabilities
=  124 905 435 / 51 077 578
=  1:2.45

Table three below presents the financial overview of the municipality.

ž⅜⅝⁹⅔dbiddu⁶₁⅜₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d₂₉⅔₅₉⁶⅔¢

Financial overview: 2014/2015

Original Budget Adjustment Budget Actual

Income: 289 780 196 302 922 103 32 137 613

Grants 63 404 000 79 045 000 102 976 662

Taxes, Levies and Tariffs 206 651 316 199 972 979 183 958 862

Other 19 724 880 23 904 124 39 202 089

Sub Total 32 404 403 43 828 715 28 432 317

Less: Expenditure 257 375 793 259 093 388 297 705 296
(excl. capital grants)

ž⅜⅝⁹⅔dcidd˜₃⅔₅⅜₇⁶₁⁴d₅⅔₉⅔₁₈⅔₆

Operating ratios

Detail %

Employee Cost 30.45

Repairs & Maintenance 4.15

Finance Charges & Impairment 1.31

The employee cost is at 30.45% ratio to total operating cost and this is a positive reflection as the municipality is further
moving towards an even lower ratio in the next financial year.  Repairs and maintenance at 4.15% compared to the
2.23% of last financial year this proves an increase as it was expected. By the end of the financial year Finance charges
and impairments were standing at 1.31%.
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Total Capital Expenditure 

Detail 2012/13 2013/2014 2014/2015

Original budget 16 190 000 32 262 000 23 015 000

Adjustment budget 21 605 000 43 386 000 67 992 000

Actual 21 605 000 38 341 722 55 884 000

In the year under review, uMngeni Municipality relied only on the Municipal Infrastructure Grant for all the CAPEX projects.  

`₎ddd˜łvpRpxšpžx˜Rpp₡dst˘t₡˜¡1tRpžd˜˘tł˘xtˇ

The financial year 2014/2015 began with Mr. SG Simpson, General Manager:
Economic Development and Planning acting in the Municipal Manager’s position.
In August 2015 Mr. KE Mpungose stepped in and took over the reins from Mr. SG
Simpson leading the administration of the municipality into what seems like a
better position in terms of compliance.

The strategic planning session which took place in the Drakensberg from 3-5
November 2014 gave both the administration and councillors of the municipality
an opportunity to re-evaluate the status of the municipality and determine a way-
forward. It proved to be a success as a number of resolutions taken at the session
were implemented before the end of the financial year. 

Evaluation Panels for the performance assessments established by Council in
financial year 2013/2014 were active during the year under review. Mid-year
SDBIP performance assessments were conducted during the 3rd quarter of the
financial year. 

Organisational development processes included training of councillors through the workplace skills plan, to ensure that
the leaders of the municipality are well capacitated to play their oversight role.  This took place in financial year 2013/2014
but rolled over to 2014/2015. For the rest of the municipal staff an opportunity was afforded for them to submit study
assistance applications, these were all approved and a considerable amount was contributed towards the employee’s
study fees to various institutions including UNISA, DUT, FET College, etc. Each employee was given a maximum of
R7000.00 towards the study fees.

`₎eddp¨sxž˜ł₍vtRptłp₡rš
łt¡˜łž

uMngeni Municipality obtained an
unqualified audit opinion with
emphasis of matter. The municipality
is in the process of developing an
action plan to ensure that the findings
raised by the Auditor General are
attended to. Once the plan is
developed the Management
Committee (MANCO) will be respon-
sible for its monitoring. Details of the
report are in Chapter 5 of this
document.
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Section 127 (2) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act No. 56 of 2003, states that the Mayor of the Municipality
must within seven months after the end of financial year table in the Municipal Council the annual report of the munici-
pality and of any municipal entity under the municipality’s sole or shared control.

The process that will be followed in drafting, tabling and adopting the 2014/2015 annual report will be as follows:
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No. Activity Timeframe

1 Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. July 2015
Except for the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year
reporting formats to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly 
into the Annual Report process at the end of the Budget/IDP 
implementation period

2 Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences 
(In-year financial reporting).

3 Finalise the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year

4 Submit draft year 2014/2015 Annual Report to Internal Audit 
and Auditor-General

6 Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of municipality August 2015
and entities (where relevant)

8 Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report

9 Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual 
financial statements and performance report to Auditor General

10 Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be provided  
as input to the IDP Analysis Phase

11 Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual September – 
Financial Statements and Performance data October 2015

12 Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s comments December 2015

13 Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council 31 January 2016
complete with the Auditor- General’s Report 

14 Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 01 February 2016

15 Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 30 March 2016

16 Council adopts Oversight report

17 Oversight report is made public 04 April 2016

18 Oversight report and final adopted annual report are submitted to relevant 02 April 2016
provincial councils

19 Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalisation for next financial year. 
Annual Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input May 2016

Meetings for the assessment of the annual report by the oversight committee will be advertised in the print media and
are open to public.  The final Annual report will be published together with oversight report as adopted by Council.
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uMngeni Municipality’s governance structure is made up of political and administrative governance, inter-governmental
relations, and public accountability and participation along with corporate governance.

The section on Political governance presents the breakdown of elected Councillors, the committees they are part of, and
the number of meetings they attend.   The administrative aspect of the municipality is reported in terms of the Organi-
sational structure being implemented and a distinction made of the business units and their respective functions. The
intergovernmental relations section focuses on the relations forged by the Municipality with other sector departments
for the purposes of developing into a progressive municipality and successfully carrying out its day to day activities.
Among these are the National & Provincial Treasury, the Auditor General & the provincial Department of COGTA. 

The section on Public Accountability looks at the strategies used by the municipality to ensure service delivery and
community involvement in the affairs of the municipality.  Among the mentioned strategies are community meetings,
izimbizo and ward committee processes within all 12 wards of the municipality. 

Corporate governance looks at issues of transparency and accountability whereby the municipality outlines its top risks,
and also the way in which they run the supply chain management unit. Together these important aspects intertwine and
are forged so as to ensure all aspects of the municipality are properly functioning and that communities receive quality
services at an affordable price.

r˜1¡˜RptRpždpidd¡˜₡xžxrp₡dpRpsdps1xRpxšžłpžx˘tdv˜˘tłRppRprt

The political structure of the Municipality is
made up of the elected Councillors led by
the Mayor; and the administrative structure
has the General Managers or Heads of
Departments (HODs) led by the Municipal
Manager. Both these structures work
together in the quest of delivering basic
services to the communities serviced by
uMngeni Municipality. 

Note: The Constitution section 151 (3)
states that the council of a municipality has
the right to govern on its own initiative, the
local government affairs of the local
community.

a₎`d¡˜₡xžxrp₡dv˜˘tłRppRprt

uMngeni Municipality has functional Executive Committee and Council structures that meet monthly.  The portfolio
committees also meet on a monthly basis. The Municipal Public Accounts Committee and the Audit Committee continue
to play the imperative oversight and advisory role to Council, to ensure that the municipal functions are on track. 
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Party Total Seats Wards Seats PR Seats Gender

African National Congress 14 8 6 F =7  
M = 7 

Democratic Alliance 9 4 5 F=6 
M = 3
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The councillors are elected by the local registered voters to serve a predetermined term of office on the local council as
representatives of their respective constituents. uMngeni Municipal Council has a total of 23 seats. Twelve (12) of these
seats are allocated to ward councillors who are elected by the wards they represent. The other 11 seats are allocated
to political parties in proportion to the number of votes cast for them. 
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Clr MP Myeni
Mayor

Clr SR Majozi
Deputy Mayor

Clr TP Mchunu
Speaker

Clr STJ Ndlovu Clr T Cele Clr Z Dlamini Clr T Duggan Clr M Greuneberg

Clr G MthembuClr J MkhasibeClr C MillarClr J LewisClr J Holmes

Clr H Ndlela Clr N Mlotshwa Clr M Ndlovu Clr SD Nkuna Clr T Nxele

Clr LP Phikwane Clr S Pillay Clr B Zuma Clr J Zondi

Clr P Passmoor
EXCO Member
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The portfolio committees are made up of Councillors from both political parties
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COMMITTEE/ SUB-COMMITTEE ALLOCATIONS COUNCILLORS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Cllr MP Myeni (Mayor - Chairperson)

Cllr SR Majozi

Cllr PA Passmoor

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE Cllr STJ Ndlovu (Chairperson)

Cllr GT Dlamini

Cllr HP Ndlela

Cllr TA Duggan

Cllr MJ Grueneberg

TECHNICAL CLUSTER Cllr MP Myeni (Mayor - Chairperson)

Cllr GT Dlamini

Cllr JA Mkhasibe

Cllr FG Mthembu

Cllr BA Zuma

Cllr J Lewis

Cllr PA Passmoor

Cllr LP Phikwane

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC CLUSTER Cllr SR Majozi (Deputy Mayor - Chairperson)

Cllr SD Nkuna

Cllr HP Ndlela

Cllr JM Zondi

Cllr TG Nxele

Cllr CRW Millar

Cllr TA Duggan

Cllr FT Cele
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COMMITTEE/ SUB-COMMITTEE ALLOCATIONS COUNCILLORS

MANAGEMENT CLUSTER Cllr MP Myeni (Mayor - Chairperson)

Cllr STJ Ndlovu

Cllr SK Pillay

Cllr M Ndlovu

Cllr N Mlotshwa

Cllr MJ Grueneberg

Cllr JE Holmes

INTERIM FINANCE (BUDGET SUB-COMMITTEE) Cllr MP Myeni (Mayor - Chairperson)

Cllr SR Majozi, Deputy Mayor

Cllr PA Passmoor

LOCAL LABOUR FORUM Cllr SK Pillay (Chairperson)

Cllr Dlamini

Cllr STJ Ndlovu

Cllr JE Holmes

CREDIT CONTROL Cllr PA Passmoor (Chairperson)

Cllr SR Majozi (Deputy Mayor)

Cllr Mkhasibe

INFORMAL TRADERS Cllr GT Nxele (Chairperson)

Cllr SD Nkuna

Cllr LP Phikwane

Cllr M Ndlovu

VALUATION Cllr SK Pillay (Chairperson)

Cllr FG Mthembu

Cllr CRW Millar

AUDIT COMMITTEE Mr. S Sethene

Mr. C Ngubane

Mrs. N Gevers

Mr. L Kubheka

Mr. B Dladla
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Type of Council Committee Meetings: Number Number of Meetings

Council 12 + 4 Special Council = 16

Executive Committee 14

Municipal Public Accounts Committee 7

Technical Cluster 9

Social And Economic Cluster 8

Management Cluster 8

Interim Finance Committee 23

Local Labour Forum 5

Credit Control 10

Informal Traders 3

Valuation Sub-Committee 10

Audit Committee 4
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Mr KE Mpungose
Acting General Manager

(From August 2014 to May
2015)

Mr S Gwala
Chief Financial Officer
(From January 2015)

General Manager:
Community Services

(From December 2014)

Mr HS Buthelezi
General Manager:

Corporate Services 

Mr SG Simpson                                                                              
General Manager:

Economic Development 
and Planning (and Acting
Municipal Manager as at
June 2015 to July 2015)

Mr B Mpanza
Title?

Mr E Svensson
General Manager: 
Technical Services

The departments are;

• Office of the Municipal Manager (OMM);

• Corporate Services;

• Financial Services;

• Economic Development and Planning;

• Community Services;

• Technical Services

The above mentioned departments are
headed by General Managers (HODs),
reporting directly to the Municipal Manager.

For strategic development purposes, there
is a Management Committee (MANCO)
structure, where all the General Managers
together with the Municipal Manager, delib-
erate weekly on administrative issues of the
municipality and over and above that
structure, is the monthly, Extended
Management Committee (ExMANCO) which
is a structure made up of MANCO and line
managers of the municipality.  This structure
further ensures that all the strategic issues
linked to the operations of the municipality
are reported and addressed accordingly.
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‘Inter-governmental relations’ is the relationships between the three spheres of government. The South African Consti-
tution states, ‘the three spheres of government are distinctive, interdependent and interrelated’. Provincial and local
government are spheres of government in their own right, and are not a function or administrative implementing arm of
national or provincial government. Although the three spheres of government are autonomous, they exist in a unitary
South Africa and they have to work together on decision-making and must co-ordinate budgets, policies and activities,
particularly for those functions that cut across the spheres.

¡ł˜˘xRprxp₡dxRpžtłv˜˘tłRp1tRpžp₡dłt₡pžx˜Rpš

Provincially, the Municipality engaged with and received support from a number of government departments and organ-
isations. The Provincial Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA) worked closely with the
performance management unit (PMS) to support the implementation of Organisational Performance Management and
the IDP through the District Technical Advisory Committee (DTAC).

Provincial Treasury continued to support the Interim Finance Committee (IFC), the finance department and the internal
audit unit.

The Mayor and Acting/Municipal Manager participated in the MUNIMEC.

sxšžłxrždxRpžtłv˜˘tłRp1tRpžp₡dłt₡pžx˜Rpš

At a District level, the municipality participated
in a number of forums and meetings in the
quest to enhance service delivery.  

These were as follows: 

• The District Technical Forum.

• Planning and Development Cluster

• Financial Cluster

• Corporate Governance Cluster

• Corporate and Social Services Cluster

• Technical and Infrastructure Cluster

• GITOC

• Communication cluster

• Special Programmes

• Municipal Managers’ Forum

• Mayors’ Forum

Over and above the structured engagements, the municipality, through the Communications section, is working on
strengthening the district intergovernmental relations through involvement in the annual Mandela Marathon as well as
collaborations in the Mandela Capture Site, Exhibition Centre. 

r˜1¡˜RptRpždridd¡¨q₡xrdprr˜¨Rpžpqx₡xž¯dpRpsd¡płžxrx¡pžx˜Rp
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During the 2014/2015 financial year, the municipality had 12 functional ward committees which serve as a conduit
between the municipality and the community. 

In addition to ward committees, the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) is made public and
published on the municipal website. This contains projected financial and service delivery Indicators and deliverables.
Members of the public are also invited to participate in the Oversight process related to the Annual Report.

In the promotion of public accountability and participation members of the public are invited to attend all meetings of
the Council and its committees.
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Another mechanism of public participation is the mayoral budget and integrated development plan (IDP) izimbizo. These
are held prior to finalising the multi-year budget in order to provide feedback to the community on the implementation
of projects in the current financial year and to illicit the needs of the community in order to provide input for the new
financial year (IDP review). 

Section 2.4 below provides an outline of further mechanisms which the municipality utilises as a mean of public partic-
ipation.

b₎`dd¡¨q₡xrd1ttžxRpvš
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IDP, PMS and budget process plan are approved by Council before end of august annually. Once approved a public
notice is posted on the website and various newspapers. The process plan reflects the different activities and milestones
in terms of the IDP review, PMS and budget implementation and monitoring.

uMngeni Municipality has a well-structured public participation programme which is reflected in the Process Plan.  

Below are the citizen mobilisation and participation strategies employed by the municipality to ensure that the voiced
of the citizen and stakeholders are accommodated in the planning, execution and review of the IDP, Budget and PMS
processes are as follows:
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uMngeni Municipality had it communication strategy approved by Council in June 2015.  The document is used to guide
the internal and external communication processes amongst which responsiveness towards public complaints and
ensuring the implementation of Batho Pele principles is key.
The implementation of the various public participation/ engagement strategies mentioned above varies.  Some are
conducted throughout the year specifically at an operational level and then some of them are organised fortnightly,
monthly, and quarterly and annually as reflected in the municipality’s Process Plan.

In total, 69 ward committee meetings were held and 7 IDP community meetings were held covering all 12 wards; the
break-down follows in the table below.
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• Ward Committee Monthly Meetings

• Stakeholders Quarterly Meeting
(Reporting on PMS Progress/SDBIP and IDP)

• Monthly Community Meetings by Councillors 
(due to financial constrains are held once in
two months /6 meetings per annum per ward

• Project Based Meetings

• Sector Plan Based Engagements

• Community Based Planning

• Complaints Register: Customer Care and 
Batho Pele Engagements

• Executive committee – Open to Public

• Full Council Meeting – Open to Public 

• Integrated Development Planning Meetings:
- Izimbizo: Public Meetings for 
- Budget, IDP etc.

• Municipal Property Rates Act (MPRA)

• Service Standard or Charter

• Operation Sukuma Sakhe – Premier’s

• Flagship tool for Accelerated Service Delivery 
at a ward-base level

• Attendance to invitations by interest groups
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Nature and purpose 
of meeting

IDP Review & 
Multi-Year Budget 
Meetings in 
Wards 1-12

Date of Meeting Number of participating Number of Community
Municipal Councillors Members Attending

11 April 2015 4 49

14 April 2015 3 129

15 April 2015 3 114

16 April 2015 3 141

19 April 2015 4 58

21 April 2015 4 103

22 April 2015 4 52
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Nature and purpose 
of meeting

Ward Committee
meetings in the 
following wards:

Ward 1

Ward 2

Ward 3

Date of Meeting Number of participating Number of Community
Municipal Councillors Members Attending

Quarter 1 
12 September 2014 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 7
29 September 2014 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 5

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
31 January 2015 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 9
07 March 2015 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 9

Quarter 4
15 April 2015 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 6
20 May 2015 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 7
17 June 2015 1 (Cllr Mkhasibe) 5

Quarter 1 
30 July 2014 1 (Cllr Holmes) 7

27 August 2014 1 (Cllr Holmes) 4
30 September 2014 1 (Cllr Holmes) 7

Quarter 2
01 October 2014 1 (Cllr Holmes) 7

1 (Cllr Holmes) 5
1 (Cllr Holmes) 8

Quarter 3
21 January 2015 1 (Cllr Holmes) 8
18 February 2015 1 (Cllr Holmes) 6

18 March 2015 1 (Cllr Holmes) 8

Quarter 4
15 April 2015 1 (Cllr Holmes) 6
20 May 2015 1 (Cllr Holmes) 7
17 June 2515 1 (Cllr Holmes) 5

Quarter 1 

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
18 January 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 7
14 February 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 10

21 March 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 8

Quarter 4
05 April 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 5
17 May 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 7
15 June 2015 1 (Cllr Zondi) 9



v₂₉⅔₅₁⅜₁⅞⅔dš₇₅₈⅞₇₈₅⅔s⅞₂₁₇⁶₁₈⅔⅓t

for the year ended 30 June 2015

ac

Nature and purpose 
of meeting

Ward Committee
meetings in the 
following wards:

Ward 4

Ward 5

Ward 6

Ward 7

Date of Meeting Number of participating Number of Community
Municipal Councillors Members Attending

Quarter 1 

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
24 January 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 6
08 February 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 11

22 March 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 11

Quarter 4
12 April 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 8
24 May 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 5
28 June 2015 1 (Cllr Nkuna) 5

Quarter 1 
30 July 2014 1 (Cllr Lewis) 5

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
30 January 2015 1 (Cllr Lewis) 9
27 February 2015 1 (Cllr Lewis) 11

26 March 2015 1 (Cllr Lewis) 6

Quarter 4
24 April 2015 1 (Cllr Lewis) 8
26 June 2014 1 (Cllr Lewis) 8

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
25 January 2015 1 (Cllr Millar)
27 January 2015 1 (Cllr Millar)
27 March 2015 1 (Cllr Millar)

Quarter 4
24 April 2015 1 (Cllr Millar)
29 May 2015 1 (Cllr Millar) 5
26 June 2015 1 (Cllr Millar)

Quarter 1 

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
15 February 2015 1 (Cllr Passmoor) 4

15 March 2015 1 (Cllr Passmoor) 4

Quarter 4
19 April 2015 1 (Cllr Passmoor) 4
17 May 2015 1 (Cllr Passmoor) 4
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Nature and purpose 
of meeting

Ward Committee
meetings in the 
following wards:

Ward 8

Ward 9

Ward 10

Ward 11

Date of Meeting Number of participating Number of Community
Municipal Councillors Members Attending

Quarter 1 

Quarter 2
18 December 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 10

Quarter 3
10 February 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 7

04 March 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 8

Quarter 4
15 April 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 6
12 May 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 7
04 June 2015 1 (Cllr Ndlovu) 6

Quarter 1 
17 January 2014 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 7

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
18 January 2015 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 5
09 February 2015 Apology 7

09 March 2015 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 6

Quarter 4
08 April 2015 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 5
22 May 2015 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 6
23 June 2015 1 (Cllr Dlamini) 6

Quarter 1 

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
03 February 2015 1 (Cllr Majozi) 9

09 March 2015 1 (Cllr Majozi) 10

Quarter 4
12 May 2015 1 (Cllr Majozi) 9
17 June 2015 1 (Cllr Majozi) 9

Quarter 1 
09 September 2014 1 (Cllr Nxele) 6

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
14 January 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 9
06 February 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 6

05 March 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 7

Quarter 4
14 April 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 8
08 May 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 8
12 June 2015 1 (Cllr Nxele) 8
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Nature and purpose 
of meeting

Ward Committee
meetings in the 
following wards:

Ward 12

Date of Meeting Number of participating Number of Community
Municipal Councillors Members Attending

Quarter 1 
07 September 2014 1 (Cllr Zuma) 4

Quarter 2

Quarter 3
01 March 2015 1 (Cllr Zuma) 3

Quarter 4
12 April 2015 1 (Cllr Zuma) 6
03 May 2015 1 (Cllr Zuma) 6
07 June 2015 1 (Cllr Zuma) 3

r˜11tRpžd˜Rpdžwtdtuutržx˘tRptššd˜udžwtd¡¨q₡xrd1ttžxRpvšdwt₡si

The meetings provide a platform for the community members to raise their concerns and also have a say in the devel-
opmental issues affecting their wards.  The meetings also ensure timeous feedback on their problems/issues raised in
the previous year.  However, there is still room for improvement in ensuring that the meetings (both public and ward
committee meetings) are held regularly. 
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IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? YES

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies? YES

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? YES

Are the above aligned and can they be calculated into a score? YES

Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan? YES

Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 57 Managers YES

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP? YES

Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes YES

Were the indicators communicated to the public? YES

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames? YES

* Section 26  Municipal Systems Act 2000
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Corporate Governance at uMngeni Municipality entails risk management, supply chain management, performance
management and internal audit which is unpacked below.

c₎`dłxšzd1pRppvt1tRpž

Risk management processes in uMngeni Municipality serve to:

• Identify and rate strategic and operational risks that have the highest potential to impact (positively or negatively)
on the achievement of the municipalities strategic objectives.

• Serve as a valuable tool and reference source for management, assisting management in identifying and/or
managing risks including financial, operational, compliance, reputational and strategic risks.

• Assist the municipality with the development and rollout of mapped controls and an action plan   process at the
Municipality

Risk management remains a function of the Office of the Municipal Manager.  However, senior management is tasked
with ensuring identification and managements of risks within their departments.

The top 5 risks identified within uMngeni Municipality are:

a) Revenue management

b) Performance management

c) Expenditure

d) Housing delivery

e) Records Management

In 2013, Council approved the Risk management framework for uMngeni Municipality and the municipal manager was
appointed as the custodian of its implementation, through MANCO and the Internal Audit unit.  The main focus is on the
top 5 risks as well as any other risks reflected on the risk register, which is currently undergoing review.

c₎adpRpžx₍r˜łł¨¡žx˜RpdpRpsdułp¨sdłxšzd1pRppvt1tRpž

In February 2014, the Department of COGTA organised an Anti-Corruption and Fraud Risk management workshop.
This was facilitated by an auditing firm and attended by General Managers and Extended MANCO.  A risk register was
developed at the workshop. The anti-corruption policy is currently being reviewed by Internal Audit Unit. The municipality
is currently deliberating with COGTA on the assistance with the anticorruption line.

c₎bdš¨¡¡₡̄ drwpxRpd1pRppvt1tRpž

The supply chain management policy was reviewed and adopted by Council In June 2015 in preparation for the new
financial year. The aim was to establish a credible base from which the business processes can be developed.  The policy
is aligned to the Model policy issued by National Treasury and to remove information that related to processes hence
making it a legal document per the SCM regulations.  Proper delegations and sub delegations per the SCM policy were
established and implemented.

The staff complement in the SCM unit is made up of the manager, the administration officer and an intern.

The SCM implementation plan was developed and implemented throughout the year and quarterly reports on implemen-
tation were submitted to the Mayor (i.e. the deviations report).

In terms of the MFMA SCM regulations, the SCM policy of the municipality must provide for a system of demand, acqui-
sition, logistics, disposal, risk and performance management, and our policy does provide for it. Further details on
tenders awarded in the year under review are disclosed in the next section on service delivery performance. 
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The Municipality has a performance management unit within the office of the Municipal Manager (OMM).  Currently, the
unit has a Manager and an Officer who joined the unit on the 1st of February 2014.  The performance management
framework was adopted by Council in May 2014. 

The key performance areas for the unit include the development, monitoring, evaluation and reporting of the SDBIP
performance information.
The performance information of the SDBIP was reported quarterly to Council.  Formal mid-year assessments of the
performance of senior managers were conducted in March 2015.

c₎cdq ₍̄₡pˇš
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Bylaw Promulgated Date promulgated

Pound Advertising Signs Y April 2006

Dogs Y April 2006

Dumping and Littering Y April 2006

Cemetery Y April 2006

Control of Parking Y April 2006

Attendants / Car Guards Y April 2006

Credit Control and Debt Y April 2006

Collection Y April 2006

Credit Management  Y April 2006

Electricity Supply Y April 2006

Financial Y April 2006

Fire Brigade Services Y April 2006

Funeral Undertakers Y April 2006

Nuisances Y April 2006

Public Health Y April 2006

Public Meetings and Gathering, Processions and the Like Y April 2006

Informal and economy by-law adopted by Council 09 October 2014 

Waste Management Y April 2006

By-law relating to nuisance adopted by Council April 2008

Emergency Services by-law Not yet still in draft stage

Traffic and Crime Prevention by-law adopted by Council in October 2014

Dog by-law to be reviewed

Enforcement of the current bylaws continues to be a priority for the municipality’s traffic section as well as Economic
Development and Planning Department.
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During the year under review, the municipality’s website was under construction; hence a number of documents could
have been inaccessible.  However, a number of documents were uploaded as mandated by legislation.
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Municipal Website: Content and Currency of Material

Documents Published on the Municipal Website (Yes/No) Publishing Date

Current annual adjustment budget and all budget related documents Yes June 2015

All Current budget Policies Yes June 2015

The previous annual report 2013/2014 Yes January 2014

All current performance agreements required in terms of section 57 (1) (b) 
of the Municipal Systems Act 2011/2012 and resulting scorecards. Yes August 2015

All service level agreements 2014/2015 No

All long term borrowings contracts 2014/2015 NA

All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value 
for 2014/2015 No

An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed 
value that have been disposed of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) 
during 2014/2015 NA

Contracts agreed in 2014/2015 to which subsection (1) of section 33 
apply, subject to subsection (3) of that section. NO

Public Private Partnership agreements referred to in section 120 
made in 2013/2014 NA

All quarterly reports tabled in Council in terms of Section 52 (d) Section 71 
during 2014/2015 Yes June 2015

Any other information required in terms of Section 75 of the Municipal 
Finance Management Act. Yes January 2015

c₎ed¡¨q₡xrdšpžxšupržx˜Rpd˜Rpd1¨Rpxrx¡p₡dštł˘xrtš

Due to stringent financial constraints, uMngeni Municipality has not commissioned any community/ public satisfaction
surveys. However, positive as well as negative feedback is received on a regular basis through the Control Office, Call
Centre as well as the Office of the Municipal Manager.  The municipality is currently engaging on the development of
the rapid response measures to ensure that service delivery protests are prevented.
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of uMngeni Municipality is made up of three members who are not employed by the municipality
and thus independent as required by section 166(4) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). The Audit
Committee members were appointed in terms of a council resolution.

Below are the names and designations of each of the Audit committee members:

Name of Member Designation Status

Adv. S Sethene Chairperson Active

Mr. C Ngubane PMS Specialist Resigned August 2015)

Mrs. N Gevers, CA(SA) Member Resigned November 2015)

Mr. L Kubheka Member Active

Mr. B Dladla Member Active

Meeting Attendance by the Audit Committee members

The Audit Committee consists of the independent members listed hereunder, is required to meet at least four times per
annum as per its approved Terms of Reference. During the year under review; meetings were held as follows:-

� 19 August 2014
� 30 August 2014
� 31 October 2014
� 13 March 2015

For the 2014/15 financial year, a total of five meetings (as stated above) were scheduled by the uMngeni local Municipality
Audit Committee and the attendance for these meetings was recorded as follows

Name of Member Number of meetings attended

Adv. S Sethene 4

Mr. C Ngubane 1

Mrs. N Gevers, CA(SA) 4

Mr. L Kubheka 4

Mr. B Dladla 2

Audit Committee responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference in our charter in line with the requirements of
section 166 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003. We further report that we conducted our affairs
in compliance with the Audit Committee Charter as adopted by Council.

The effectiveness of internal control

We have reviewed various reports from the Internal and External Auditors, and the report on the adequacy and effec-
tiveness of internal control systems. During the year under review, several deficiencies in the system of internal control
were reported by the internal auditors and the Auditor-General.

Furthermore, management should take all reasonable steps to ensure that internal control weaknesses identified by
internal and external auditors are rectified to ensure adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls.
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Internal audit

In the 2014/15 financial year an improvement in the activities internal audit as no findings in the Auditor General report
were reported, which is an improvement from the 2013/14 financial year. The Audit Committee does however note that
further improvements need to be made within the internal audit activity especially concerning an increase focus in
compliance audits.

The committee is satisfied with the processes and policies that have been developed in the unit and monitoring the
internal audit work as per the approved risk based internal audit plan. The Audit Committee does however note that
further improvements need to be made within the internal audit activity especially concerning an increase focus in
compliance audits.

The quality of in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the MFMA

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial reports as required by section 72 of the MFMA in the meetings that
were held for the year under review. The municipality further relies on the reviews done by Treasury and Auditor General
in terms of the quality thereof.

Evaluation of financial statements

The Audit committee reviewed the Annual Financial Statement of uMngeni Municipality for the 2014/15 financial year prior
to submission to the Auditor-General. Furthermore, the Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General's conclu-
sions on the annual financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted
and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

Evaluation of the Performance Management System

The Internal Audit Activity has reviewed the performance management systems and information in terms of the relevant
laws and regulations and submitted the reports to the Audit committee for quarter one to four of the 2014/15 financial
year. The findings on such were thus discussed and action plans to address such findings were developed for imple-
mentation by management. Furthermore, the Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General's conclusions on
the annual performance report and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements and performance report
be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

The Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the officials of the municipality and the Auditor-General for their
assistance and co-operation.

Adv. Smanga Sethene

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

31 July 2015
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The Annual Performance Report (APR) is a legislative requirement which prescribes that the report must be submitted
to the Auditor General by the 31st August annually. The Annual Performance Report, amongst other documents, will form
part of the consolidated Annual Report of the Municipality which must be tabled to Council by the end of January on an
annual basis.

The Annual Performance Report (APR) 2014/ 2015 of uMngeni Municipality is presented as follows:

Functional Area Service Delivery Reporting Per Department 

• Section One: Service Area Overview & Financial Performance
• Section Two: Scorecard And Departmental SDBIP Annual Performance Reports

This APR is based on the National Treasury annual report template which was further customised to reflect only the
services rendered by the Municipality.

The municipality has had great success in ensuring existence of a fully-fledged PMS Unit that is structured according
to the organisational structure (Manager and Officer).  This ensures that the municipality’s Organisational Performance
Management System (OPMS) improves and that reliability of reports received is tested through intense engagements/
analysis.   The importance of reporting is continuously emphasised to all employees as non-reporting reflects negatively
on the municipality’s performance.

In preparation for 2014/2015 financial year, the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) and
Performance Management System Framework was reviewed and approved by council in August 2014.
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Performance reporting by various internal departments (HODs) was done quarterly and these reports were further consol-
idated for submission and review by the Municipal Manager, Audit Committee, Internal Audit and finally submitted to
Council.

The section 56/57 managers signed the performance agreements for the 2014/2015 financial year, of which two S56/57
managers (Manager: Community Services and CFO) joined the municipality in the second half of the year.  Three
performance assessments were conducted.  This includes two informal assessments and one formal.  The fourth
assessment will be conducted in quarter one of the 2015/2016 financial year.  This was delayed unavailability of the evalu-
ation panel members. 

The Municipal Manager position was filled by two Acting Municipal Managers, Mr KE Mpungose (August 2014 – May
2015) and Mr SG Simpson (June 2015).  

In November 2014, the municipality’s leadership (Councillors, General Managers and Middle Managers) together with
labour unions embarked on a strategic planning session which was facilitated by the then Acting Municipal Manager and
Mr Thulani Bhengu, Senior Manager at the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (Province).  
The strategic planning session was therefore carried out as part of the municipality’s performance management process
to allow for proper review and planning in order to enhance the Municipality’s service delivery efforts.  This session set
a platform for reviewing the Municipality’s strategic direction through a review and redevelopment of the Vision, Mission
and Strategic objectives.  The outcomes of the engagements are to serve as a framework for the Municipality’s long term
development plan.  

The Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC), Audit Committee, Interim Finance Committee (IFC) and Credit
Control Committee have continued to play their oversight role.  

Section one of this report gives the service area overview, with achievements, challenges and measure for improvement
and financial performance in relation to basic services.
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The 2014/2015 financial year has been a challenging one from a service delivery perspective.  This is attributed to the
shortage of resources and in particular human resources, transport and equipment resources and capacity at a
manager level.

The improved financial status of the Municipality has had positive impact on service delivery in relation to repairs and
maintenance.  As a result, 70% of the municipality’s graded roads have been re-graveled (in areas where graveling was
overdue).  Service delivery has also improved at the land fill site where the hiring of heavy plant has addressed backlogs
and improved the operation of the site.  All our urban areas receive at least weekly collection of refuse.  As a result of a
high vacancy rate at general worker level our focus has been on the utilisation of EPWP labour and the programme
consisted of three different groups namely, maintenance services, Food for Waste and waste management, this
programme yielded 165 job opportunities.  Our EPWP programme also extended to job opportunities on our capital
works programme and this programme yielded 76 job opportunities.

Although only R1m grant was received from the Department of Energy, the Municipality was able to provide 68 new
prepaid connections to rural farm dwellers living on private land.  It is worthwhile noting that although this was a complex
project the co-operation between all stakeholders has yielded a total of 281 connections in these communities.  uMngeni
Municipality is extremely proud of this innovative project as currently there are no known initiatives of this nature.

The Municipality’s greatest asset is the surfaced road infrastructure.  As a result of improved cash flow of the Municipality
a contract of R6m was awarded for roads’ rehabilitation and a further R6m will be allocated in the 2015/2016 financial
year for the same.

Although challenged by processes within the Municipality we were able to spend 100% of our MIG grant on new roads
and sports field.  The strategy being to have an impact across the entire Municipality.

The construction of the Mandela Exhibition Centre will become a landmark in the Municipality although faced by
challenges good progress has been made.  The above are a few highlights which has improved service delivery as a
result of improved cash flow.

`₎dr˜1¡˜RptRpždpidqpšxrdštł˘xrtš

The Basic Services component within uMngeni Municipality includes: electricity; waste management; and housing
services.  Electricity and waste management are the responsibility of the Technical Services department. The housing
section is split between Technical Services department (for EIAs and construction project management) and Community
Services Department (for social compact).  

Water and Sanitation is the responsibility of uMgungundlovu District Municipality and is therefore briefly reported in this
annual performance report. The municipality remains responsible for facilitating the process of making sure that all water
and sanitation needs within its area of jurisdiction are attended to accordingly by UMDM through a referral system
carried out by the control (customer care) unit, as well as Senior Management.

The responsibility of ensuring provision of electrical services is shared between uMngeni Municipality, Eskom and
Msunduzi Municipality (for Hilton area).  

uMngeni Municipality does not have a fully-fledged electricity unit and thus relies on service providers for such
services.  In the year under review, the electricity service provider for uMngeni Municipality is Electrical Power Services
(EPS).  The service provider is responsible for all areas that are not serviced by Eskom and Msunduzi.  It is to be
noted that the contract with EPS has come to an end and in the new financial year, a new service provider will be
appointed to take over.
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Redressing the infrastructural imbalances of the past remains the municipality’s number one priority.  In the financial year
2014/2015, the Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG), budgeted at the amount of R21 415 000 was fully (100%) utilised
for construction and rehabilitation of roads, storm water drains, as well as construction of a sports field.

Towards the end of the financial year, the municipality made available funding amounting to R6m for further rehabilitation
of roads in areas not eligible for benefiting from the MIG.

Details of each service delivery component follow.

`₎`dt₡tržłxrxž¯

As stated earlier, uMngeni Municipal area is serviced by three electricity service providers being EPS (on behalf of the
Municipality), Eskom and Msunduzi Municipality.  In the financial year under review the municipality has been motivated
to start considering a move towards establishment of a fully-fledged electrical services unit.  This was further motivated
by the recommendations made by SALGA at the strategic planning session held in November 2014.  Some of these
recommendations follows:

• That the municipality needs to retain the responsibility for electricity distribution as per the Constitution.

• That an action plan for assuming responsibility for electricity distribution needs to be developed.

• That the Municipality needs to consider acquiring an electricity distribution license and enter into a service level
agreement with Msunduzi Municipality (distributing in Hilton) while in the process of establishing the unit.

• That the municipality (as the Service Authority) can continue to contract out the distribution of electricity (or parts
of the service) to a capable external service provider.

• According to Stats SA 2011 Census, uMngeni Municipality has provided about 85% households (out of 30450)
with access to electricity.  This indicates a backlog of 15%.

A brief summary of the achievements:

- During the 2014/15 financial year 68 new households were electrified (Gamalethu/Sherwood in ward 4 = 28,
Hawkstone in ward 5 = 6, Hiltonian Society phase 2, ward 12 = 34).

- The Electricity service provider has continued with extensive maintenance and repairs.  The municipality has
appointed a new service provider as the previous service provider’s contract ended.

- The Municipality has succeeded is starting the processes of relocating the electricity transformers that have been
over the years located in household yards in Mpophomeni.

The table below illustrates the electricity financial performance, comparing three financial years which shows that there
has been no improvement in the actual revenue from electricity over the years. 
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Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue 59 445 186 65 275 000 63 675 000 56 777 666 61 416 516 65 538 661 56 907 328
(excl. tariffs)

Expenditure:

Repairs and maintenance 412 612 6 610 000 1 066 000 733 696 5 564 426 4 214 426 2 160 273

Other 71 235 303 84 027 062 87 358 969 77 197 547 77 197 318 86 876 175 79 408 529

Total operational expenditure 71 647 916 90 637 062 88 424 969 77 931 243 82 761 744 91 090 601 81 568 802

Net (12 202 730) (25 362 062) (24 749 969) (21 153 577) (21 345 228) (25 551 940) (24 661 474)

š⅔₅₉⁶⅞⅔ds⅔⁹⁶₉⅔₅.d¡⅔₅⁰₂₅₀⅜₁⅞⅔dł⅔₃₂₅₇ds⅞₂₁₇⁶₁₈⅔⅓t

for the year ended 30 June 2015

bd



`₎`₎`drwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpdt₡tržłxrxž¯d

¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜˘tłp₡₡

Some of the challenges encountered include:

- The Municipality’s unavailability of an electricity internal unit.  This means that the municipality is only supplying
and recovering revenue from only 76% of its population as some electricity is provided by Eskom and Msunduzi; 

- the backlogs on the repairs, maintenance, refurbishment and replacement of electricity infrastructure; 

- There is high prevalence of electricity theft, as a result Council has initiated a “Stop electricity theft campaign”.
The programme was first implemented in 4 wards within Mpophomeni and plans for rolling it out to other wards
are underway.  The electricity sales are much less that the purchase amount thus revenue is lost due to theft and
tampering;

- the electricity losses were which were 17% in 2014/2015 compared to 14% in 2013/2014 financial year;

- That revenue losses are mainly due to technical distribution losses, illegal connections, un-billed metered
consumers, unmetered authorised consumers and tampering with meters.

In order to curb the challenges presented and improve on revenue collected, the Management Team will continue to
lobby for political will and support in the implementation of the following strategies:

- The revenue enhancement strategy which includes;

• ‘Stop theft campaign’ and non-payment disconnections.

• Conversion of conversional meters to prepaid to ensure receipt of payments through purchases instead of
having to bear the costs and losses of write-offs.

`₎adˇpšžtd1pRppvt1tRpž

Waste management within uMngeni Municipality includes, refuse removal, land fill site management, recycling and street
cleaning.  

The Municipality has established links with various environmental organisations such as DUCT, Wildlands, WESSA etc.
as well as government departments such as Department of Agriculture and the Department of COGTA as part of environ-
mental management.

Recycling continues to grow as the major component of refuse removal, as it has, through Wildlands been rolled out to
areas such as Mpophomeni.

DUCT continues to assist the municipality in
removing the illegal dump sites in various
communities.

Towards the end of the 2014/2015 financial
year, the municipality appointed a Manager for
Waste Management and this has really
contributed towards improved waste
management, in relation to waste collection and
street sweeping and landfill site management.

The Municipality implemented three waste
management projects (EPWP, Food for Waste
and Youth in Waste) that contributed to creation
of 166 (incl.15 Youth Educators) jobs. 
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The table below illustrates the waste management and the landfill site financial performance. 
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Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue 12 809 020 14 000 996 14 000 996 14 451 044 10 519 552 10 519 552 10 467 939

Expenditure:

Employees 3 161 504 3 656 840 3 530 204 3 509 427 3 205 154 3 848 621 4 288 665

Repairs and maintenance 387 431 638 319 464 319 414 362 1 327 838 1 467 110 1 394 731

Other 3 744 209 5 850 361 5 872 692 4 922 175 7 462 864 7 718 944 5 009 957

Total operational expenditure 7 293 144 10 054 520 9 867 215 8 845 964 11 995 856 13 034 675 10 693 353

Net 5 569 876 3 946 476 4 133 781 5 605 080   (1 476 304) (2 515 123) (225 424)
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Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue 33 434,09 55 210 55 210 0,00 58 523 58 523 0

Expenditure:

Employees 1 346 452,51 1 579 443 1 570 927 1 434 019 1 360 577 1 676 492 1 797 353

Repairs and maintenance 256 640,64 1 601 418 421 418 303 745 831 017 989 121 847 458

Other 581 010,76 1 223 178 1 093 361 3 258 983 1 166 744 3 089 168 5 348 178

Total operational expenditure 2 184 103,91 4 404 039 3 085 706 4 996 747 3 358 338 5 754 781 7 992 989

Net (2 184 103,91) (4 348 829) (3 030 496) 4 996 747 (3 299 815) (5 969 258) 7 992 989
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Staff shortage in the waste management section still poses a challenge.  However in the current financial year, with the
presence of the then Acting Manager: Waste Management (now appointed Manager), the section made great success
which amongst other things, includes the cleanup of the landfill site, initiation of dump clearing projects, prompt refuse
removal. 

The availability of EPWP, Food for waste and Youth in waste programmes contributed positively to the waste
management section.  A review of the Organisational structure would result to improved performance in the section.
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Housing includes provision of low cost housing structures, rental dwellings, title deeds hand over as well as social
compact processes (i.e.: consumer education, community liaison etc.).

In the Tribal Authority area of KwaNxamalala 847 housing units were successfully constructed and handed over to the
households. 

Upon complying with all planning conditions a funding application for construction of houses in Khayelisha will be
furnished to the Department of Human Settlements.  This project will yield 1500 houses in a phased manner. 

The Municipality also achieved E.I.A. authorisation for a further three proposed housing projects.  The expected yield
for all these housing projects at various stages is 2957 units.

The distribution of the title deeds has been dealt with by the Housing component over the years, since the office was
established in 2003.  The distribution of title deeds of more than 946 to rightful owners was biggest highlights of our
housing section.

ž⅜⅝⁹⅔dcidž⁶₇⁹⅔ds⅔⅔⅓ds⁶₆₇₅⁶⅝₈₇⁶₂₁

AREA/WARD TOTAL DISTRIBUTED

Lidgetton West 5

Zenzani 31

KwaMevana 30

Howick Ext. 33/34 113

Mpophomeni  W08 406

Mpophomeni  W11 123

Mpophomeni  W09 98

Mpophomeni  W10 50

Mpophomeni  W08 90

One of the key success in 2014/15 under Housing relates to consumer education which was carried out in different
wards. To date, more than 700 beneficiaries have been trained. This has been done in collaboration with the Department
of Human Settlement. The objectives of the programme follow:

• To ensure that all Housing Consumers in the entire residential property market understand the Government’s role
in the provision of housing;

• to ensure that consumers understands their rights, duties, responsibilities as well as their obligations, working in
partnership with government to meet their housing needs to ensure sustainable housing delivery.

It is envisaged that the programme will continue in all other remaining wards in the next financial year. 
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The tables below detail the status of the municipality’s housing projects.

žpq₡tddidšžpž¨šd˜udw˜¨šxRpvd¡ł˜ytržš

NO. PROJECT STATUS BUDGET WARDS OUTCOME

1. Hiltonian Housing The project is a partnership with the R2.5m Ward 12 98% Completion 
Projects (Phase 3) Hilton College to deliver housing units (27 units built to 

to the previously disadvantaged completion)
community of Hilton Village 
(Tea Pot Valley).

2. Cedara Housing Funding application has been submitted R54.6m Ward 7 650 housing units
Projects to the Department of Human Settlements 

for construction of 650 units.

3. Gowrie Housing Withdrawn by private sector partner. N/A Ward 3 The land owner 
project has withdrawn from  

the agreement

4. Hillside housing The project is at PDA stage. R8.4m Ward 3 Partnership with
100 units will be constructed. private sector 

DEVCO for the
This process was delayed by the donation of land
National Department of Agriculture’s and possible 
requirement for the Municipality to counter funding
further conduct an EIA for water from DEVCO for
provision. construction of  

100 units.

5. Khayelisha  Housing The ROD and DFA conditions are still  R126m Ward 7 1500 units to 
to be met and 1500 units will be built house Zuzokuhle 
upon approval. and Shiyabazali 

informal settlers.

6. Tumbleweed This project is at ROD stage and 22 R1.85m Ward 12 22 housing units
units will be constructed.

7. St Josephs This project is ta EIA stage.  
80 units will be constructed. R6.72m Ward 6 80 housing units

8. KwaMevana This project is ta PDA stage. 
21 units will be constructed. R1.76m Ward 12 21 housing units

9. Lions River Phase II This project is at ROD stage and 547 R49.5m Ward 9 547 housing units 
units will be constructed. to be constructed

10. Lutchman This project is ta ROD stage and 82 R6.9m Ward 4 82 housing units  
units will be constructed. to be constructed

11. Nxamalala/ Inadi 100% completion. R54m Ward 8 847 units 
Rural  Housing  & 9 constructed
Project   

Table 6 below illustrates the housing financial performance, comparing three financial years. Housing does not have
operational revenue.
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Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue nil nil nil nil nil nil nil

Expenditure:

Employees 947 148,35 617 481 547 257 503 438.52 1 156 102 1 041 902 794 059

Repairs and maintenance Nil 60 000 5 000 nil 5 280 5 280 0

Other Nil 567 408 221 983 98 027,32 157 833 154 167 1 370 302

Total operational expenditure 1 134 884,36 1 244 889 774 240 601 465,84 1 319 215 1 201 349 835 361

Net (1 134 884,36) (1 244 889) (774 240) (601 645,84) (1 319 215) (1 201 349) (2 999 722)

`₎b₎`drwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜udžwt

w˜¨šxRpvdštł˘xrtd˜˘tłp₡₡

Provision of low cost housing is one of the Municipality’s priority areas.  However it is one that is faced with challenges
that are beyond the control of the municipality. Even though there has been a number of projects planned, emanating
from previous financial years, Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs), authorisation for appointment of Implementing
Agents (IAs) as well as obtaining funding from the DHS have all posed a stumbling block in the efforts toward getting
the projects implemented to completion.

The Municipality’s Management Committee has therefore initiated engagements with DHS in order to work on amicable
solutions to ensuring service delivery concerning provision of houses.  Further deliberations regarding EIAs are being
initiated.  This is crucial for the Municipality as all these projects are intended to assist with eradication of slum dwellings
within the municipality, which will in turn results to services delivery to all residing within the Municipal boundaries.

Furthermore, the vacancies and salary disparities in the Housing section remain a challenge that the Management
Committee is working on.

`₎cdułttdqpšxrdštł˘xrtšdpRpsdxRpsxvtRpždš¨¡¡˜łž

The municipality continues to cater for its indigent residents.  This process is guided by an internal policy and there is
an approved indigent register that is reviewed accordingly to ensure that only eligible consumers benefit from this
essential provision.

The indigent debtors receive 100kwh free electricity per month provided that they have a prepaid electricity meter
installed.   Over and above that, properties with the valuation of up to R200,000 are also exempt from paying refuse
charges.

Furthermore, electricity write-offs of R9 173 316 (conventional meters) for indigent consumers have been considered.
This amount is a result of the implementation of the revenue enhancement strategy wherein consumers were granted
amnesty pending receipt of payments as per the strategy.

`₎c₎`drwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜udžwtdułtt

qpšxrdštł˘xrtšd˜˘tłp₡₡

The indigent register is updated twice per annum in order to ensure that only eligible consumers benefit from the
programme.



a₎dr˜1¡˜RptRpždqidł˜psdžłpRpš¡˜łž

Road transport in this report refers to mainly roads and storm water and slightly on public transport. Roads, transport,
and waste water (storm water drainage) falls within the Technical Services Department.

Furthermore, it is to be noted that the municipality has bylaws regulating the operation of public transport within its juris-
diction; however the municipality does not provide municipal public transport services.

In the financial year under review, the Management Committee of the Municipality initiated engagements with the
Department of Public Works with the intention of negotiating release of parts of the land (own by the Department)
surrounding the new taxi rank with the intention of extending the rank so that it can meet the standards of the Department
of Transport and thus be operational thereof.  These discussions are still ongoing.

There has been progress in relation to roads and storm water, and these are reported below.

a₎`dł˜psšdodšž˜ł1ˇpžtł

Road infrastructure rehabilitation and maintenance continues to be a challenge as there are still backlogs resulting from
limited funding.

In the period under review, 10km (in total) of roads were constructed to surfaced road standard in various areas of
Mpophomeni and Howick South.

Furthermore, a R6 million allocation was set aside for rehabilitation approximately 10km of road which consists of pothole
repairs, slurry seals and asphalt resurfacing.  This project was awarded late in the financial year due to compliance to
processes and will therefore, run into the 2015/2016 financial year, where a further R6m will be allocated for a second
phase of the same.

The roads rehabilitation plan for the Municipality will go a long way in improving the condition of our roads.  About R12m
has been allocated to this project for the 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 financial years.

The table below illustrates the roads financial performance, comparing three financial years. Roads did not have opera-
tional revenue.  However, a number of capital projects for the reported financial year were related to roads.
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Under this unit (within Technical Services), storm water drains are constructed by contractor building roads and which
then meant the Municipality’s role is maintenance through cleaning drains, jet blasting to clear the drains.

The storm water management system project for the Khayelisha housing project has reached 70% completion. 

However this was not done regularly due to excessive costs of hiring the jet blasting machine and this is rather
challenging as the drains are prone to blocking causing the roads to be unsafe during rainy seasons.  The Municipality
is currently working on securing funds to purchase its own machine to limit costs and improve service delivery.

The table below illustrates the storm water financial performance, comparing three financial years. 

žpq₡tdgiduxRppRprxp₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtda-`cˆ`didšž˜ł1dˇpžtłdštł˘xrtš

Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue No Income No Income Collected No Income Collected
(excl. tariffs)

Expenditure:

Employees 1 876 804.94 2 429 432 2 338 082 1 969 298 1 955 178 2 150 114 2 159 378

Repairs and maintenance 601 476.46 3 667 313 2 387 313 646 519 3 312 525 1 961 273 793 048

Other 484 962.27 2 369 759 1 290 744 59 805 3 595 780 1 142 062 50 423

Total operational expenditure 2 963 243.67 8 466 504 6 016 139 2 675 622 8 863 483 5 253 449 3 002 849

Net (2 963 243.67) (8 466 504) (6 016 139) (2 675 622) (8 863 483) (5 253 449) (3 002 849)

Storm water capital projects included construction of new storm water lines and drains in Mpophomeni, where new
roads had been constructed.
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Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational No income No income No income No income No income No income No income 
collected collected collected collected collected collected collected

Expenditure:

Employees 3 617 089,36 4 870 224 4 658 224 3 853 996,69 3 752 324 4 273 350 4 611 684

Repairs and maintenance 2 103 005,61 8 244 482 4 450 000 2 422 862,20 6 659 500 6 663 800 4 824 513

Other 2 551 866,50 6 427 983 9 883 329 3 638 929,59 8 111 737 9 453 865 4 474 756

Total operational expenditure 8 271 961,47 19 542 689 18 991 553 9 915 788,48 18 523 561 20 391 015 13 910 962

Net (8 271 961) (19 542 689) (18 991 553) (9 915 788,48) (18 523 561) (20 391 015) (13 910 962)



a₎`₎`drwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd˜˘tłp₡₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜u
ł˜psšdpRpsdšž˜ł1dˇpžtłdštł˘xrtši

The human, plant and equipment resources within the Technical Services Department is severely constrained which
affects performance as per the set targets. The excessive time for processes to be completed in the course of providing
services is a challenge and this is also attributed to the shortage of staff.  Such constraints have also been felt through
what has been perceived as excessive overtime required for the limited number of employees to put in in order to get
the work done.

In order to overcome the challenges, the Department needs to be resourced to norms and standards for a Municipality
of our size.  Without the tools and the means to achieve the department cannot be expected to perform.

Continuous liaison with other spheres of Government is key to unlocking challenges where this consultation is required.
However, this does create time delays for the delivery of projects and services.

The biggest measure for improvement will be implementation of the revised Departments structure, and also filling of
vacancies.

ˇpšžtdˇpžtłdsšž˜ł1ˇpžtłdsłpxRppvtt

The vehicle Licensing unit falls within the community services department and is open daily to render and licensing
services required by the community.

In the financial year under review, the licensing section ensured that additional staff for Learners and Vehicle Licensing
are hired as service delivery was seriously hampered.  This has resulted in improved Service delivery on Learners and
vehicle Licensing.

With regards to law enforcement, there were several roadblocks that ensured more than 40% improvement of prose-
cution compliance.

The table below illustrates the vehicle licensing financial performance, comparing three financial years. 

žpq₡tdhiduxRppRprxp₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtda-`cˆ`did̆ twxr₡td₡xrtRpšxRpvdst¡płž1tRpž

Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational expenditure 7 540 203,16 15 634 400 15 103 815 26 279 601 12 838 609 28 384 515 24 321 555
Employees 5 753 630,39 6 392 490 6 369 222 6 610 685 7 130 894 7 231 531 7 572 776

Repairs and maintenance 9 378 94,33 320 811 253 534 161 471 271 281 222 383 209 829
Other 3 458 285,21 5 325 196 4 788 126 15 144 958 5 195 188 16 249 444 13 057 410

Total operational expenditure 9 378 947,33 12 038 497 11 410 882 21 917 114 12 597 363 23 703 358 20 840 015
Net (1 838 744) 3 595 903 3 692 933 4 362 487 241 246 4 681 157 3 481 540

a₎a₎`dddrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd˜˘tłp₡₡d
¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜udžłpRpš¡˜łži

Challenges encountered during the financial year under review (2014/2015) included; traffic Patrol vehicles lease ending,
traffic Warrants not being executed due to staff shortage, lack of Traffic and Crime Bylaws restricted enforcement.

In order to overcome the challenges, there has been movement from time to time of existing staff to assist with traffic
administration, which meant the need to obtain approval and support from Management for additional staff transfers.
Council approval has also been obtained for proposed Traffic & Crime By-laws

In the ensuing financial years, this section is planning to implement approved rank structure for Officers, ensure that
additional vehicles are acquired for improved enforcement and ensure that available enforcement technology is acquired
for enforcement and lastly, to ensure implementation of bylaws. 
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This component includes: planning and local economic development.

b₎`d¡₡pRpRpxRpv

The main objectives of town planning are to provide local development and encourage public participation to the
members of the communities. The main key performance area is to review the Spatial Development Framework as
required by the Municipal Systems Act and to extend the town planning schemes to the areas that were previously
not covered by the town planning scheme. Town Planning. The other objective is to process all development appli-
cation and enforce the town planning scheme as required by the KwaZulu-Natal Planning and Development Act.
Delegations to perform certain duties were approved by Council and advertised in 2012 as required by the KwaZulu-
Natal Planning and Development Act.

The planning section of the department ensured that compliance with the PDA, as well as the building and environmental
regulations was adhered to.

The table below illustrates the planning financial performance, comparing three financial years.

žpq₡td`-iduxRppRprxp₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtda-`cˆ`did¡₡pRpRpxRpv

Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015

Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual
budget budget budget budget

Total operational expenditure 7 540 203,16 15 634 400 15 103 815 26 279 601 12 838 609 28 384 515 24 321 555
Employees 5 753 630,39 6 392 490 6 369 222 6 610 685 7 130 894 7 231 531 7 572 776

Repairs and maintenance 9 378 94,33 320 811 253 534 161 471 271 281 222 383 209 829
Other 3 458 285,21 5 325 196 4 788 126 15 144 958 5 195 188 16 249 444 13 057 410

Total operational expenditure 9 378 947,33 12 038 497 11 410 882 21 917 114 12 597 363 23 703 358 20 840 015
Net (1 838 744) 3 595 903 3 692 933 4 362 487 241 246 4 681 157 3 481 540

There were no capital projects under the planning section

b₎`₎`drwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd˜˘tłp₡₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜u
¡₡pRpRpxRpvi

All planning requirements as per legislation were adhered to.  With compliance regulations and documents submitted
in time to council and all other relevant structures. 

b₎ad₡˜rp₡dtr˜Rp˜1xrdst˘t₡˜¡1tRpžd

The local economic and development section has also had a great financial year in that a number of new LED projects
were introduced.   These include the business enhancement and retention project, the annual SMME business seminar
and the crafters market implemented together with the Zulu Mpophomeni Tourism Experience (ZMTE).  Another big
achievement for the section was getting the Mpophomeni Tourism Gateway to open for business
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Economic Industry Gross Value Added (R mill) at 2005 Prices

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Primary Sector 489 491 534 482 484 -0.2%

Agriculture, forestry and fishing 477 479 522 468 471 -0.4%

Mining and quarrying 12 12 11 14 13 3.1%

Secondary Sector 765 814 843 777 812 1.5%

Manufacturing 622 659 677 609 641 1.1%

Electricity, gas and water 59 54 48 41 41 -11.4%

Construction 84 102 118 128 129 15.5%

Tertiary Sector 1937 2078 2183 2219 2266 4%

Wholesale and retail trade, 
catering and accommodation 436 473 489 493 504 4.9%

Transport, storage and communication 281 304 317 320 327 5.2%

Finance, insurance, real estate and 
business services 569 612 651 654 665 5.4%

Community, social and personal services 271 288 302 304 307 4.4%

General government 380 400 425 449 462 6.7%
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The table below shows the staff complement of the LED unit.

žpq₡td`aidwłdrp¡prxž¯d˜ud¨1RpvtRpxd1¨Rpxrx¡p₡xž¯dž˜dx1¡₡t1tRpžd₡tsd

Municipality 2012/13            2013/2014 2014/15

posts filled posts filled posts filled 
approved posts approved posts approved posts

Number: 9 6 8 6 8 6

The table below reflects the number of jobs created through municipalities’ local economic development initiatives,
including capital projects.  The purpose of this indicator is to assess and reveal the extent to which municipalities
contribute towards creating jobs through the implementation of capital projects, as well as their own LED initiatives.

In the financial year 2014/2015, the municipality had 151 EPWP employees (including Food for waste).

žpq₡td`bidy˜qdrłtpžx˜Rp

2012/13 2013/2014 2014/15

EPWP LED Co-ops EPWP LED Co-ops EPWP LED (food Co-ops 
jobs jobs jobs jobs jobs jobs jobs for waste jobs

jobs)

No 68 10 0 90 9 0 56 95 + 15 0
youth in
waste

žpq₡td`cid₡tsˆdrp¡xžp₡d¡ł˜ytržšdpRpsdt1¡₡˜¯1tRpždšžpž¨š

NO. PROJECT DESCRIPTION STATUS VALUE L.M. WARDS OUTCOME

1. Extended Employed on Currently 56 R190 000/ All wards 56 Employed
Public various employed and month
Works construction employment will
Project projects end at various

stages as 
projects come

to an end

2. Food for  Employed to 3 year programme R97 000/ All wards 95 employed
Waste address waste with employment month X 12 = contracts
Project minimisation contribution from R1 126 000/ ended 

and address LM increasing annum 31 July 2015
illegal dumping each year and

COGTA reducing
each year.

Current group 12
month contract
completed in 

July 2015

3. Youth in 15 Youth Contracts end in Unknown as All wards Department of
Waste educators August 2015, they are not Agriculture

contracted to recommended by paid by the through
educate Kabochedie to be Municipality. Kabochedie

community on extended by  
waste matters further 6 months
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žpq₡td`didd₡tsd¡ł˜ytržšd

NO. PROJECT DESCRIPTION STATUS VALUE WARDS OUTCOME

1. Business This is intended to Launched in Sponsored All This is ongoing as
Retention facilitate economic October 2014, the TKZN is working on

and growth of uMngeni programme is a joint the BR&E strategy
Expansion Municipality through initiative of uMngeni

(BR&E) Promotion of business Municipality and
Programme expansion and Trade and 

retention. Investment KZN.

2. SMME The seminar was  The Seminar R50 000 All It was recommended at the
Business themed: “Growth took place in end of the Seminar that the
Seminar and developing of June 2015 SMME forum looks at

SMMEs’. This annual and is intended key development issues, to
event intended to to be an train SMME’s on compliance,

create a platform for annual event. quality product development
deliberating on issues and packaging and look

pertinent to the at participation of SMME’s
development of local in municipal economic
SMME’s and in turn development opportunities.

together craft These recommendations have
intervention prompted the municipality

programmes. together with the SMME 
forum to start working on
intervention programmes.

b₎a₎adrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpd˜˘tłp₡₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜u

₡˜rp₡dtr˜Rp˜1xrdst˘t₡˜¡1tRpži

Staff shortage is the biggest challenge for the LED section, and this is one of the challenges that MANCO is seeking to
address with the revision and implementation of the new structure.  

c₎ddr˜1¡˜RptRpždsidr˜11¨Rpxž¯dodš˜rxp₡dštł˘xrtš

This component includes: libraries, registry services, museums, community halls, cemeteries and crematoria, office of
the rights of a child, senior citizens’ programmes, social programmes and theatres.

The activities implemented within this component are activities of various departments within the municipality.  Libraries
and museum as well as some of the social services are within the Community Services Department, Community halls
and Archives (Registry) are within Corporate Services Department and office of the rights of a child (youth programme),
senior citizens’ programmes and youth Services are within the Office of the Municipal Manager.

c₎`ddrt1tžtłxtšdpRpsdrłt1pž˜łxpd

The top three service delivery priorities within this section are;
assisting rural communities with burials, upon receipt of a
formal request and confirmation by the ward councillor; to
maintain records of burials/ash internment at all 5 municipal
cemeteries and 1 remembrance wall (Hilton), to ensure that due
preparation is done for burials and assistance available through
the municipality to families.

Community Services also directs the applications for pauper
burials when necessary.

To ensure that there is sufficient burial space, the municipality
is in the process of introducing a new cemetery in Lions River.
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The number of museums within the Municipality is
increasing and this is indeed a positive milestone
in ensuring that the heritage of this area is upheld
and showcased to all residents and tourists alike.

Even though the Municipality’s main Museum in
Howick was challenged by near disastrous
misfortune which halted operation for almost the
whole financial year.  The museum is undergoing
renovations and is now at 90% completion.  At the
sometime, the Zulu Mpophomeni Tourism
Experience (ZMTE) launched the Mpophomeni
Museum which has amazingly showcased the
SAMCOL strike events through a visual exhibition.

The Mandela Capture Site has been a resounding success with tourism and economic development growing exponen-
tially.  A grant of R54m from COGTA is allocated to the Exhibition Centre and forms part of the greater Master Plan for
the site.  National and International interest has been phenomenal. 

c₎bd₡xqłpłxtš

The municipality has 4 fully functional libraries that are subsidised by the Department of Arts and Culture.  These libraries
are; Hilton library, Mpophomeni Library, Howick West Library and Howick Library Two libraries (Mpophomeni and Howick
West) have cyber cafes, this entails internet access as well as computer literacy classes.  In the reported financial year,
two libraries underwent renovations.  

The Howick West library was unfortunately flooded during the heavy rains experienced in summer that it had to be
renovated in order to clear it off the damages experienced.  At the same time, the Howick West library staff successfully
set up a fully functioning library at the Howick Secondary school.  

The Howick Library is also undergoing renovations that will be wrapped up in the next financial year, 2015/2016.  These
renovations can be reported as the greatest success for the library as the library being awarded the tender for renovating
and the creation of the kiddie’s toy library. 

Through the channels of communication and consultation the South African Library for the Blind has consulted with
uMngeni Municipality, KZN-Provincial Library and the Mpophomeni Library to establish the library for the Blind at
Mpophomeni Library in 2014.  The workshop/training was held on the 29th July 2014, the workshop was attended by
the library staff, CBRs, Visually Impaired people and the Zenzeleni Project. The Workshop / Training was on how to
assist the visually impaired people to use Daisy Machine, the Document Reader, and to do presentation on the objec-

tives of the project.  The Library has already received the full equipment for the
Library for the Blind (i.e. PC, Daisy Machine, the Literature and the furniture.

Two of the local visually impaired signed the forms to join and become members.
Meanwhile, the Hilton library has successfully launched a toy library in the children’s
section.

c₎cdrwx₡sdrpłtjdpvtsdrpłtjdš˜rxp₡d

¡ł˜vłp11tš

As per the reporting requirements, this section is for reporting on Child Care, Aged
Care and all other social programmes.  However, it is appropriate to report on
sections/ units within the municipality that are responsible for child care, aged care
and all social programmes.  These units/ sections belong the Office of the Municipal
Manager and Community Services Department.

The units/ sections that will be reported on are the; youth office, the special
programmes unit (incl. senior citizens and disability programmes), Operation Sukuma
Sakhe (incl. HIV/AIDS).   
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The youth office remains a brainchild of the NYDA.  In the reported financial year, the Municipality signed a further
agreement with the NYDA for the running of a functional local youth office.  There is no monetary support received for
the running of the office.  However the packages offered by the NYDA to young people have gone a long way as young
people are afforded the opportunity to apply for business grants, get access to information and career guidance etc. 

The youth office services include firstly, all the services offered by the NYDA (there is an active referral system), then
outreach activities (including school visits), CAO tertiary applications, walk in services (incl. job hunting and CV devel-
opment), life skills workshops, and tertiary institutions registration to new students.

In the year under review, the youth office conducted 3 workshops (job preparedness, Pregnancy and substance abuse
and life skills workshops).  More than 100 students were assisted with the CAO tertiary applications, 7 students were
assisted and secured bursaries to study in the medical field (3 in Pretoria, 1 at Greys Hospital and 3 in Cuba).  24 new
tertiary students (from uMngeni Municipality) were assisted with registration fees to register at various tertiary institutions.
The Municipality further assisted Palesa Hlela, a local renowned swimmer who represented South Africa at the swimming
tournaments held in Zimbabwe.

The Youth Office recorded 7025 young people assisted in the office as walk-ins (this is based on the registers kept in
the youth office).

In the reported financial year, the discussion and plans for implementation of the Youth Build project between uMngeni
Municipality and the NYDA (National office) intensified.  Thus at the end of the financial year, the two partners were
engaged with plans for recruitment of 100 young people, final discussions with the training institution (UTVET) and plans
for the launch.  Implementation of the programme will start at the beginning of 2015/2016 financial year.  Both partners
have pledged R2m each for the implementation of the R4m worth project for the development of youth skills.

The Office of the rights of a child (ORC) is still an operational component of the Outreach section.  The community based
ORC committees are operational.  10 Young people from different wards in the Municipality attended the Children’s
Week activities in Kokstad.
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Ambassador.

The youth office hosted a number of successful June month events, which saw collaboration with various community
groups. The events were as follows;

žpq₡td`eid̄ ˜¨žwd1˜Rpžwdt˘tRpžš
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No.

1.

2.

3.

EVENT

uMngeni Dance Club – 
Competition

Ziyenzeka Explosion
(5km Fun run, soccer and 
netball events, motivational 
talks by prominent sports-
men/women) for all wards
Izwi Youth Awards

(Awarding youth achieve
ments – all wards)

OUTCOMES

Young people are encouraged to take part in dance
sport.

-Young people attended in numbers

- The event is now an annual event and the Municipality
is happy to partner with the event organisers as such
events activate youth and prepares them for the Mayoral
games, KwaNaloga games as well as SALGA games.

-The event showcased a number of young people that
have done well but had not yet been recognised locally.

- As affirmed by the event organisers, the awards created
as a platform to facilitate delivery of youth development
and support programmes for youth by all other
government departments and stakeholders with youth
interest.

DATE

13 June 2015

16 June 2015

27 June 2015

c₎c₎addš₃⅔⅞⁶⅜⁹d¡₅₂⁴₅⅜₀₀⅔₆

The special programmes are an initiative of the Office of Premier, therefore the Office together with the UMDM play a
pivotal role in ensuring that such programmes at local level are supported.
The reported financial year was indeed a success for the section.  A special programmes forum was launched on 26
March 2015 and has since been actively involved in steering issues of persons that fall within groups that are referred
to as vulnerable groups.



The senior citizens programmes geared towards
promotion of healthy aging and protection of the aged
from abuse took place as follows; the District Golden
games, capacity building workshop, and senior citizens
training that took place on 23 2015.  Furthermore
scheduled and unscheduled meetings with senior citizens
clubs took place.  

In the financial year under review, the municipality partic-
ipated in the district games with 70 senior citizens from
uMngeni Municipality.  5 were then selected to participate
in the Provincial games and one went on to National level.  

c₎c₎bdd˜₃⅔₅⅜₇⁶₂₁dš₈⁸₈₀⅜dš⅜⁸⁵⅔ds˜ššt

OSS includes community profiling, HIV/AIDS initiatives and LAC, grants, ID and birth certificate assistance, taking part
in ward based poverty alleviation war rooms, coordinating then Local Task Team interventions / meetings.  On the other
hand, OSS has been the biggest achievement for the municipality within social services.  Community profiling has been
carried out in 10 wards.  Out of that process a number of people have been assisted to get grants, IDs and certificates.
War rooms, which are part of OSS requirements, are taking place within all wards.  The war room meetings are chaired
by ward Councillors together with war room conveners from the various government departments.

HIV/AIDS Teenage pregnancy and social ills project was launched in Mpophomeni. Two of the LAC partners entered into
a Service Level agreement with the Department of Education to enable them to do HIV/AIDS work within the High
Schools of uMngeni Municipality. The aim and desire of the project was to curb the alarming high rate of pregnancy and
new HIV/AIDS infection amongst teenagers.

The section’s biggest project was the HIV/AIDS EPWP project where funding was received to roll out the project which
employed 5 beneficiaries as Learner Support Agents (LSA’s) who were deployed to Government schools from May to
July 2015. The LSA’s on a peer level, provided education on Teenage pregnancy, HIV/AIDS and other social ills to the
leaners. In another tier the project provided temporary employment for the beneficiaries who received a stipend of
R1800-00 per month.

Furthermore, through the LAC continuous HIV/AIDS/Health outreach campaigns have been held to provide education
and services in the communities through partnerships with various stakeholders.  There has been ongoing Local Aids
Council meetings.  The section further held two major and successful Operation Sukuma Sakhe, Operation Mbo
programmes, where Government Service were brought to the communities of Ward 3 and 9.

c₎dddrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpdžwtd¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜udrwx₡s
rpłtjdpvtsdrpłtjdš˜rxp₡d¡ł˜vłp11tšd˜˘tłp₡₡

At the end of the first half of the financial year under
review, the Municipality bid farewell to Acting Manager:
Youth Development.  This left the already under staffed
youth office with a void that was temporarily filled by
unofficially appointing the Manager: Performance
Management System to act in the unit.  MANCO is
currently working on a plan to fill the vacancies in the
youth office.

Stringent financial constraints of the Municipality are
extremely limiting in executing the special projects.

The major challenge in the HIV/AIDS section is the
overbearing workload of one official doing both HIV/AIDS
and Operation Sukuma Sakhe programmes at once
which hinders optimal performance.
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This component includes: pollution control; biodiversity and landscape; and costal protection. 

Environmental protection includes the function carried out through the Department of Planning and Development in
assessing EIAs and monitoring EMPs related to developments. Assisted by Technical Services (Parks, Gardens and
Environment) in terms of CARA legislation and maintenance of conservation areas.

d₎`dd¡˜₡₡¨žx˜Rpdr˜Rpžł˜₡

Pollution control still rests with the uMgungundlovu District Municipality, and is monitored by the Provincial Department
of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs, in liaison with Environmental Management and Parks, Gardens and
Environment, with assistance from Disaster Management (Community Services) when applicable.

Sustained liaison and cooperation assists in improving performance and response to contain pollution. Support in terms
of provision of litter control and refuse collection has been introduced and an Indigent Policy is in place to assist in
terms of benefits to alleviate poverty.  The Provincial Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs management
projects within the municipal area aimed at improving the lives of those in poverty stricken areas.  In addition the District
Municipality, which addresses water and sanitation-related matters, has engaged with communities in awareness
campaigns in partnership with NGOs and CBOs within our municipal area.

d₎adqx˜₍sx˘tłšxž j̄d₡pRpsšrp¡tdsxRpr₡₎d˜¡tRpdš¡prtštjdpRpsd˜žwtłddddd

The Municipality has engaged in two Biodiversity Stewardship Programmes, which are in partnership with Ezemvelo KZN
Wildlife and the Provincial Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs, the one is the ultimate proclamation of a
Protected area at Beacon Hill, Howick, and the other the ultimate proclamation of a Nature Reserve at Fort Nottingham.

In partnership with NGOs and CBOs, conservation areas are maintained and utilised by schools and communities, with the
inclusion of awareness programmes and promotion of such areas as a wealth for our municipal area and communities.

The reported achievements are due to the close cooperation and liaison with interested and affected parties and the
relevant Provincial Department, District Municipality and NGOs and CBOs.  In addition the strong support shown by
Council and Senior Management has ensured progress with our targets.

Future projects which will ensure inclusion of communities living in poverty are under consideration; however, there are NGOs
and CBOs already aiming towards initiating Biodiversity-related projects, including those relating to wetlands (in Mpophomeni).

e₎ddr˜1¡˜RptRpžduidštr¨łxž¯dpRpsdšputž¯ddddd

This component includes: police; disaster management, licensing and control of animals, and control of public
nuisances, etc.

The mandate of the municipal traffic police is road safety education and law enforcement (traffic and bylaws).  This includes
ensuring road worthiness, executing road blocks, diversions and ensuring safety at local events (road users and event
participants).  Furthermore, licensing and control of animals as well as public nuisance is enforced through bylaws by the
traffic officers.  Through protection services and disaster management, the municipality is a member of the District disaster
management advisory forum, community policing forum and has an in-house local disaster management advisory forum. 

e₎`ddžłpuuxrd¡˜₡xrtddddd

The traffic police of the municipality are responsible
for law enforcement (bylaws, speed camera prose-
cution), road safety and road worthiness.  The
challenges encountered by this unit are mainly to do
with human capital and working resources (i.e.
vehicles).  Currently with the mentioned challenges,
the traffic police do not perform their duties after
18:00hrs except for when they are on standby and
this further challenges safety of community members
using the roads at night.   
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uMngeni Municipality’s disaster management unit deals with public safety, raising awareness on health hazards,
prevention of the spread of communicable diseases.  Attending to disastrous incidents (minor and major) and this is with
an aim of providing relief to the affected community.  However, current the municipality does not have a fully flagged
disaster management unit and hence rely of the uMgungundlovu District Municipality disaster management.
Furthermore, the municipality has reviewed the disaster Management Plan in line with the Act (Disaster Management Act
57 of 2002).

The MEC for   Cooperative Governance assessed the IDP uMngeni Municipality and in her observation through letter sent
to the municipality, it was found that uMngeni Municipality was not compliant on issues of Disaster Management. In
response to that; the Department of COGTA, UMDM and uMngeni Municipality came together for the purposes of devel-
oping Disaster Management Sector Plan for uMngeni Municipality. 
In compliance with the Act, uMngeni Municipality has developed a Disaster Management Sector Plan. This plan will
assist in proactive reduction and elimination vulnerability and address displacement of society and loss of life and
property from disaster through multi-sectoral and integrated approach with active participation of all role players.

žpq₡td`fiduxRppRprxp₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtidsxšpšžtłd1pRppvt1tRpž

Details 2012/13 2013/14 2014/2015
Actual Original Adjustment Actual Original Adjustment Actual

budget budget budget budget

Total operational revenue No Income No Income No Income No Income No Income No Income No Income

Expenditure: No Income No Income No Income

Employees No allocation

Repairs and maintenance 5055,49 No allocation 58 080 Nil Nil

Other 942939,00 168 445 63 445 16 494 269 042 201 121 31 319

Total operational expenditure 942944,34 438 427 190 103 22 879 267 122 201 121 31 319

Net (942 944,34) (606 872) (253 548) (39 374) (267 122) (201 121) (31 319)

No capital projects under disaster management

e₎dddrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜Rpdžwtd¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜u
sxšpšžtłd1pRppvt1tRpžd˜˘tłp₡₡i

The municipality ensures that all disaster call outs are attended to and coordination of necessary interventions.  We are
also in partnership and member of Lions River Fire Protection Association, DUCT etc.  However this could be better
implemented if the municipality had a fully-fledged disaster management unit as it would allow for immediate intervention
and would further allow for more programme to be implemented in the quest to prevention and reduction of reported
incidents.

Despite awareness programmes conducted in informal settlements (aimed at ensuring an alert informed and self-reliance)
negligence handling of flammable substance continues in these area. It impact negatively on finances of the municipality
in that this Municipality has to purchase and supply relief material to the displaced people.

Through coordination of disaster management incidents to all role players e.g. SASSA and Social Development and
NGO’s for the supply of disaster management relief, the challenges were addressed. 

In future, this section will facilitate development and adoption of uMngeni Disaster Management Sector Plan which has
all programme, purchase of relief materials for the displaced and consider adding more human capital to deal with
disaster management on daily basis. 
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This component includes: community parks; sports fields; sports halls; stadiums; swimming pools; and camp sites. 

f₎`ddš¡˜łždpRpsdłtrłtpžx˜Rp

The sports and recreation section within the
Municipality falls within the youth office.
However, the Municipality has not filled the
vacancy of a Sport coordinator.  This proves
really strenuous for the Career Development
Officer, as he has to also oversee the responsibil-
ities of this section.

In January 2015, Her Worship the Mayor,
awarded certificates to the young people that
participated in the SALGA games (and won gold,
silver and gold medals).

The SALGA games took place in October 2014
after the Mayoral games that were used a
selection platform for the provincial games.

The capital project that was projected for the report
financial year on sports and recreation was the construction of Mpophomeni Sports field.  At the end of the financial year,
phase one was completed and the project will be going into phase two in the next financial year 2015/2016.

g₎ddr˜1¡˜RptRpždwidr˜ł¡˜łpžtd¡˜₡xr¯d˜uuxrtšdpRpsd˜žwtłdštł˘xrtš

This component includes: corporate policy offices, financial services, human resource services, ICT services, property
services.  These would be, the Executive and Council office which is the office that houses the Mayor, Councillors and
the Office of the Municipal Manager.  Financial Services headed by the CFO.  Corporate Services which has the human
resources services, ICT and property services.

The reported financial year has challenged the above mentioned sections with a mammoth task of ensuring strict policy
implementation and policy controls as the municipality keeps striving for a better financial position and desire to be the
best performing municipality.

g₎`ddt˙tr¨žx˘tdpRpsdr˜¨Rprx₡

This component includes: Executive office (mayor; councillors; and municipal manager).

In November 2014, the Councillors, Top Management, the Middle Managers and Unions’ Shop Stewarts embarked on
a three days Strategic Workshop at Didima, Drakensberg.  This process was aimed at reviewing the municipality’s
strategic vision, mission, goals and strategic objectives in order to ensure that all IDP projects are aligned to these.  This
was also a process to reflect and craft new strategies collectively.  The strategic document compiled from the workshop
outcomes is still a draft working document.  This was indeed a great start in preparing for the new financial year
2015/2016.

However, the vacancy of the Municipal Manager poses a great challenge for the Municipality as there is significant
inconsistency in the administration systems implemented.  The recruitment process is ongoing.

It is also to be reported that the Municipality’s Public Participation section has made great progress is ensuring improved
convening and attendance of meetings, sector reporting and councillors’ reports.  

This was achieved through a policy on ward committee stipends and support plan, both adopted by Council earlier in
the financial year under review.
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The main services rendered by the finance department are revenue/ billing, budget, supply chain management and
expenditure.  These services are essential to the functionality of all internal departments.

The Financial Management Area services are broken down as follows:

Budget Management • Budget and Tariffs

Supply Chain Management • Tenders
• Quotations
• Creditors Database

Expenditure Management • Payments
• Remuneration
• Insurance
•   Financial Systems

Revenue Management • Billing
• Rates
• Credit Control
• Debt Collection
• Cash Receipts and Banking
• Customer Care

Financial control and Cash Management • Cash Management
• Reconciliations
• Annual Financial Statements

Management Accounts and Financial systems • Management Accounts

The Municipality has had a better financial year and listed below are some of the municipality’s greatest strides:

• The Municipality obtained an unqualified audit opinion for the 2013/2014 audit.

• Funds were ring fenced for repairs and maintenance i.e. R6 million and R2.8 million for potholes and resurfacing
and halls respectively.

• The Municipality has introduced Standard Charter of Accounting (SCOA) internally, as the National Treasury new
regulations.

• The Finance Department has prioritised compliance in terms of MFMA.

• Interim Finance Committee continues to convene bi-monthly meeting to ensure prudent financial management
by the Municipality.

• The Municipality’s leadership embarked on a campaign which included Amnesty for long standing debtors.  This
was done as part of the revised ‘Revenue Enhancement’ strategy of the Municipality.  The amnesty was only open
to residential consumers (households), and excluded municipal employees and industrial consumers.  This
campaign resulted to recovery of R1 982 816.  

• Most importantly, the Municipality appointed a Chief Financial Officer in January 2015.
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Revenue collection remains the municipality’s biggest financial challenge with the debtors’ amount as at 30 June 2015
being R98 202 731.97.  In order to address this, the municipality will further strengthen implementation of the revenue
enhancement strategy in order to ensure a healthy cash flow of the municipality.  

The deviations reported in 2014/2015 amounted to R2 225 435, 81.  These were reported and noted by Council. Over
and above the reported deviations, there was unauthorised expenditure amounting to R57 522 337 and this is mainly
due to the non-cash items being depreciation and amortisation as well as debt impairment.  The fruitless and wasteful
expenditure amounted to R825 024.

To improve on these, the Supply Chain Management (SCM) unit introduced the procurement plan which was never
adhered to.  However going forward, the SCM unit together with the CFO will ensure implementation and adherence
(through strict measures) to the systems in place in order not to incur any unauthorised and irregular expenditure.

g₎bdxRpu˜ł1pžx˜RpdpRpsdr˜11¨Rpxrpžx˜RpdžtrwRp˜₡˜v¯dsxržtdštł˘xrtš

This component includes: Information and
Communication Technology (ICT) services. 

One of the major highlights in the financial year
under review was the revamp and completion of
the Municipality’s Website which is now opera-
tional and easily accessible to all. 

The unit was further able to improve the Server
room controls, complete the LAN cabling and
computer upgrades completed.

The table below lists the automated systems
currently utilised by various Departments at the
municipality.

žpq₡td`hidd¨1RpvtRpxd1¨Rpxrx¡p₡xž¯ršdxždš¯šžt1š

1 SAMRAS Financial Management System

3 GeoDebt Finance – Credit Control

4 UMTRAFMAN Traffic Fines Management System

5 AcuGlobe GIS 

6 Tevtal Call Centre Credit Control

7 TelTrace Telephone Management System

8 VIP Payroll Pay roll 

9. Geotab Fleet Management 
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The ICT unit has an IT governance policy in place which is implemented through the master systems plan.  This plan is
aimed at ensuring that the municipality has the necessary systems in place in to ensure that the municipality’s
performance improves (i.e. financial systems reported) and in future the complaints management system, automated
performance management system, audit management system etc. will be implemented.



The server was upgraded to ensure effectiveness and efficiency in backing up all information as part of the ongoing risk
management system.  There is a business continuity plan aligned to the ICT governance strategy and the master systems
plan.  Furthermore, there are systems and controls in place to ensure that only authorised users have access to the
Municipality’s ICT systems.

g₎b₎`ddrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜˘tłp₡₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜Rp
xRpu˜ł1pžx˜RpdpRpsdr˜11¨Rpxrpžx˜RpdžtrwRp˜₡˜v¯dsxržtdštł˘xrtš

Budgetary constraints limits the provision of Qualitative Service Delivery versus implementation of certain projects for
automated document management, complaint’s management and provision of an asset register.

One of the issues raised by the Auditor General in the previous audit was related to the non-availability of an approved
ICT governance strategy.  This has been addressed through firstly, management workshop on ICT governance in the
second half of the financial year.  Secondly, following the workshop was the revision of the draft ICT governance policy
that was already in place and approved by Council.

Some of the measures put in place to ensure improved performance of the ICT unit are; budget monitoring and provision
of desired incomplete of projects; Setting up of an ICT Steering Committee to come up with a plan to ensure that ICT
projects are achieved. By establishing a steering committee and; Breaking down large projects into smaller phases to
accommodate budget constraints.

Through the assistance of the steering committee the outstanding projects from the financial year under review will be
implemented in the next financial year. The ICT services unit has plans in place to ensure high availability on all services
rendered to the organisation.

h₎dr˜1¡˜RptRpždxidw¨1pRpdłtš˜¨łrtšd1pRppvt1tRpž

uMngeni Municipality’s Human Resources Management Office exists under the guidance of Corporate Services
Department.  

The HR Office has a mandate in particular to carry out the following duties:

• Recruitment, selection and employment;

• Pay and leave administration;

• Staff administration;

• Grading and remuneration;

• Sick leave management;

• Employee wellness;

• Rewards and recognition systems;

• Talent management and succession planning;

• Human Resource Development; and

• Staff morale, organisational diagnostics and perception studies.

The Corporate and Human Resources functions and responsibilities address many of the IDP requirements to ensure
effective service delivery and community development, these include:

1. To Contribute towards Employability of Youth and Community through internship programme.

2. To ensure a competent workforce to achieve organisational objectives.

3. Improve Quality and Management Control Processes.
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The process of reviewing the Human Resources policies and ensuring that these are accessible at all times is ongoing.
The range of Policies and HR Management practices in place are as follows:

The table below reflects the status of municipal HR policies in 2014/15.

žpq₡tda-idwłd¡˜₡xrxtšdpRpsd¡₡pRpš

Name of Policy Completed Reviewed Date adopted by council or  
comment of failure to adopt

1. Attraction and Retention Draft Awaiting Assistance from COGTA

2 Code of Conduct for Employees 100% Incorporated into the induction 
manual

3 Disciplinary Code and Procedures 100% Collective Agreement

4 Employee Assistance/ Wellness 100% Council – 27/08/2014

5 Grievance Procedures 100% Collective Agreement

6 Job Evaluation 100%

7 Leave 100%

8 Occupational Health & Safety 100%

9 Organisational Rights 100% Main collective agreement

10 Payroll Deductions 100%

11 Performance Management Framework 100%

12 Recruitment Selection and Appointments 100% 27/11/2013

13 Remuneration Scales and Allowances 100%

14 Skills Development 100%

15 Retention Policy Draft

16 Contingency/ Continuity Plan 100% Council – 31/7/2014

17 Travel Allowance 100% 27/11/2013

18 Cell phone allowance 100% 27/11/2013

19 Induction Manual Extended MANCO 05/08/2013

20 Procedure Manual Extended MANCO 05/08/2013

Part of the duties of the Manager: Corporate Services include ensuring that the municipality’s policies and plan are
updated/ reviewed and made accessible to employees and the public at large.  

h₎add¡tłu˜ł1pRprtdłtˇpłsš

The Mid-year performance assessments for Section 57 managers were conducted by the Evaluation panel elected by
council.  As part of financial austerity measures, Council resolved in 2011 that no performance bonuses would be paid.
This resolution has never been rescinded thus no provision for performance bonuses is made when budgeting.
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The Municipal Service Act 2000, S68 (1) requires municipalities to develop their human resource capacity to a level that
enables them to perform their functions and exercise their power in an economical, effective, efficient and accountable way.

The Municipality through Human Resources Development Unit under the Corporate Services Department champions the
skills development programme on behalf of the Municipality. Various training interventions are conducted through the
Workplace Skills Plan (WSP). 

There are training programmes offered to some employees in order to improve the quality and standard of service
delivery. The Workplace Skills Plan is developed along the LGSETA guidelines.  Almost what is due to the municipality
in terms of the training rebates is collected on an annual basis in full. 

Whilst the Human Resources Development Unit is tasked to improve the competency of the employees the unit is also
responsible to work in partnership with various departments and training providers and communities to improve the
level of skills, knowledge and behaviour of our employees and citizens to be active participants in the city and the
economic development and growth of the municipality

Capacity Development

The Municipality has several well developed capacity development programmes and systems in place;

1. Annual Workplace Skills Plan

2. Internship Programme

3. Management Training Programmes

4. Councillor Training Programmes

5. Tertiary Institutions’ Qualifications/ Programmes

• The municipality currently has 6 interns (this includes 1 in service trainee and 2 Internal Audit trainees).

• 7 Managers attended the Executive Leadership Programme facilitated by the University of Pretoria.

• 5 Councillors attended the Executive Leadership Programme facilitated by the University of Pretoria.

• 16 Staff members were registered at various tertiary institutions, through the study assistance programme.
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žpq₡tdabidt₀₃⁹₂.⅔⅔₆d¢⁵₂₆⅔d₆⅜⁹⅜₅⁶⅔₆d¢⅔₅⅔d⁶₁⅞₅⅔⅜₆⅔⅓d⅓₈⅔d₇₂d₇⁵⅔⁶₅d₃₂₆⁶₇⁶₂₁₆d⅝⅔⁶₁⁴d₈₃⁴₅⅜⅓⅔⅓

BENEFICIARY GENDER TOTAL

No positions were upgraded, however, salary scales were reviewed for all employees whose positions had
previously been evaluated.

žpq₡tdacidt₀₃⁹₂.⅔⅔₆d¢⁵₂₆⅔d₆⅜⁹⅜₅.d⁹⅔₉⅔⁹₆d⅔$⅞⅔⅔⅓d₇⁵⅔d⁴₅⅜⅓⅔d⅓⅔₇⅔₅₀⁶₁⅔⅓d⅝.d⁷₂⅝d⅔₉⅜⁹₈⅜₇⁶₂₁

OCCUPATION NUMBER OF JOB  EVALUATION REMUNERATION REASON FOR 
EMPLOYEES LEVEL LEVEL DEVIATION

The Job evaluation process is underway.

žpq₡tdabidt₀₃⁹₂.⅔⅔₆d⅜₃₃₂⁶₁₇⅔⅓d₇₂d₃₂₆₇₆d₁₂₇d⅜₃₃₅₂₉⅔⅓d

DEPARTMENT LEVEL DATE OF NO. APPOINTED REASON FOR
APPOINTMENT APPOINTMENT 

WHEN NO 
POST EXISTS

This is not applicable to uMngeni Municipality.

DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INTERESTS

All Municipal Councillors and staff members have successfully disclosed their financial interests to avoid conflict of
interest situation.

h₎dddrwp₡₡tRpvtšdpRpsd1tpš¨łtšdu˜łdx1¡ł˜˘t1tRpžd˜˘tłp₡₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprtd˜Rp
w¨1pRpdłtš˜¨łrtšd1pRppvt1tRpž

In August 2014, the Municipality was challenged by the unrest amongst the employees of the Municipality wherein they
were demanding parity of Salaries, and demanded to be paid on top notches since they were serving long service with
the uMngeni Municipality.  Negotiations with all stakeholders resulted in an agreement that paved the way-forward and
the salary notch dispute was amicably resolved.

The Municipality has been engaged in the process of drafting Job Description in preparation for Job Evaluations.  It is
therefore believed that the Parity of Salaries will eventually be resolved when Job Evaluation is exercise is complete.

The general challenge facing not only Corporate Services Department but the entire municipality is financial constraints.
Resulting to delays or need to phase implementation of some projects such as training and development of staff and
general communities, employee wellness programme, labour turnover and enhancing staff morale.

Lastly, it has also been noted that overtime payments are too high which is attributed to the shortage of staff to execute
all the field work in the working hours allocated.  It is therefore without doubt that revenue enhancement together with
a review (and filling of vacancies) of the Organisational structure will assist in curbing these excessive costs.

`-₎ddr˜1¡˜RptRpždyiduxRppRprxp₡d¡tłu˜ł1pRprt

All relevant information relating to Financial Performance will be dealt with in terms of the Annual Financial Statements,
attached as annexure 1
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This section presents the annual performance report as per the legislated National Key Performance Areas, goals, objec-

tives, indicators and targets set in the Organisational Scorecard and the Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan

by all departments within the municipality.

According to Regulation 13 (1) of the Municipal

Planning and Performance Management Regula-

tions of 2001; “a municipality must, after consul-

tation with the local community, develop and

implement mechanisms, systems and processes for

the monitoring, measurement and review of

performance in respect of the key performance

indicators and performance targets set by it”.  Thus

the performance management system was reviewed

after the IDP review community consultation

roadshows in April 2014.

Furthermore, Section 53(1) (c) (ii) of the MFMA 56 of

2003 the Service Delivery and Budget Implemen-

tation Plan must be approved by the Mayor within

28 days after the final approval of the budget.  The

Municipal budget was approved by Council on the

17th June 2014; 28 days fell on the 15th July 2014. However, the SDBIP was approved and signed by the Mayor on

the 30th June 2014 to ensure implementation at the beginning of 2015/2016 financial year. 

Quarterly audit reports indicated a need to revise the SDBIPs as there was clear misalignment with the IDP, in that some

objectives that were included in the SDBIPs were not captured in the IDP.  Whilst, during the performance assessments

(informal and formal), it was concluded in agreement with the respective Heads of Departments that there was a need

to revise some indicators and targets.  Thus in order to address these, during the mid-year review process, the top layer

SDBIPs were developed (as per circular 13 of the MFMA 56 of 2003) to only reflect the objectives captured in the Munic-

ipality’s approved IDP review for 2014/2015.   This top layer SDBIP was approved by Council as per Section 54 (1) (c)

of the MFMA 56 of 2003.  

This section of the report is the analysis of the Departmental SDBIPs and municipal performance based on the reported

data and evidence submitted.  The SDBIP reports are an annexure to this annual performance report (APR) for

2014/2015.  It is to be emphasised that the portfolios of evidence are audited quarterly by the internal audit unit.  The

audit reports are further discussed with management to ensure corrections and improvement in the findings raised.

Therefore the POEs to the information reported in this section have been audited by the internal audit unit.

Section 1.1 that follows highlights alignment of the performance management system with the Municipality’s IDP, the

key performance areas and the provincial growth strategy.
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The Municipality has developed 8 strategic goals which are aligned to the 7 provincial goals as contained in the PGDS
and also aligned to the National Key Performance Areas. Table 26 below reflects on the linkages of the KPA`s, KZN
PGDS with the IDP Goals.  

KEY PERFORMANCE AREAS PGDS GOALS IDP GOALS 

Spatial and environmental Spatial equity  Spatial planning and environmental 
Environmental sustainability sustainability

Municipal transformation and Human resource development Service excellence and skills development
organisational development 

Basic service delivery and Strategic infrastructure  Economic infrastructure development  
Infrastructure development and maintenance  

Encourage sustainable human settlements 

Local economic and social Job creation Transformation of the main economic
development Human and community sectors

development

Municipal financial viability Governance and policy Financially sound and sustainable
and management   municipality 

Good governance and public Governance and policy  – Good corporate governance  
participation – Enhance public participation 

– Strengthen inter-governmental relations 

`₎addxs¡dv₂⅜⁹₆ffld˜⅝⁷⅔⅞₇⁶₉⅔₆d⅜₁⅓dš₇₅⅜₇⅔⁴⁶⅔₆dd

Table 27 below provides an outline of the revised Municipal objectives and strategies that are linked to the 6 Key
Performance Areas and the 8 municipal strategic goals. 
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A.  SPATIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL

IDP GOAL OBJECTIVES 

Spatial Planning and environmental  A1.  To ensure integrated development and strategic spatial
sustainability planning  

A2.  To ensure conservation and management of the natural 
resources of the municipality which includes biodiversity, water
resources    

A3.  To facilitate Disaster Management within the municipality.

B.  MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

IDP GOAL OBJECTIVES 

Human Resource Development  B1. To ensure effective and efficient Human Resources 
Management  

B2.  To ensure good labour relations  

B3.  To ensure youth development in the municipality   

B4.  Provision of effective information communication technology 
solutions to bridge the digital divide within the municipality.  

B5. To maintain a good corporate image. 

C.  BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT  

IDP GOAL OBJECTIVES 

Economic infrastructure development  C1.  To provide water, sanitation, electricity, solid waste and 
and maintenance road services  

C2.  Provision of community and public facilities 

C3. Eradicate informal settlements 

C4.  Infrastructure upgrade and maintenance      

Encourage sustainable human settlements  C5. Facilitate the provision of formal housing  

C6.  Provision of integrated public transport services 

C7.  Ensure sustainable human settlement  

D.  LOCAL ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT   

IDP GOAL (WHAT) OBJECTIVES (WHY) 

Economic transformation of the main    D1.   Stimulate economic growth for the creation of jobs 

economic sectors D2.  Enhance tourism development 

D3.  Support Small Micro Medium Enterprise (SMMEs) 

D4.  Facilitate and co-ordinate agricultural development  

Realisation of sustainable social development  D5.  Integration of all provincial special programmes into 
municipal plans
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E.  MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT   

IDP GOAL OBJECTIVES 

Financially sound and sustainable  E1.  Increase revenue collection and ensure that all
municipality municipal revenue is accounted for.   

E2.  To ensure that all expenditure is managed in terms of all 
financial legislation. 

E3. To ensure compliance with all Supply Chain Management 
Regulations 

F.  GOOD GOVERNANCE AND COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION  

IDP GOAL OBJECTIVES 

Good corporate governance  F1.  Strengthen alignment of policies and strategies of  
municipal departments.     

F2.  Strengthen inter-governmental relations 

F3.  Enhance stakeholder participation 

F4.  To have an effective organisational and individual 
performance management system 

F5.  To ensure a fully capacitated and functional Internal 
Audit Unit  

F6.  To ensure a functional Audit Committee 

The review of the performance management system was thus based on the above stated National KPA’s, strategic goals
and objectives.  Wherein, indicators and annual targets were set and broken down to quarterly targets.  Targets are also
dependent of availability of funds as per the annual budget.

The PMS process that was adhered to follows:

Diagram 1: Performance Management System 2014/2015

The focus is on the departmental service delivery plans as per the Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan for
2013/2014 signed by the Mayor of uMngeni Municipality.

The Organisational Scorecard for the period reported is in component J (above) of this report.
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Process plan
IDP review / MTERF budget road shows
IDP Rep forum
Community inputs
IDP projects
IDP adoption
IDP review by COGTA

Quarterly PMS reports
PMS audit
Midterm PMS reports
Performance assessments (informal and  
formal performance evaluation committee)
Annual performance report & annual report
Oversight report

IDP projects considered
Departmental inputs considered
Budget adoption

PMS framework review
Organisational scorecard
Organisational SDBIP
Departmental SDBIP’s (PERFORMANCE plans)
Performance agreements
Midterm PMS review
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a₎dq⅜⅞⁸⁴₅₂₈₁⅓

The following Key Performance Areas (KPAs) as outlined in the Local Government: Municipal Planning and Performance
Management Regulations (2001) inform the strategic objectives and the Key Performance Indicators as illustrated in the
Departmental SDBIPs listed in table below:

Municipal Transformation and Organisational Development

• Basic Service Delivery

• Local Economic Development

• Municipal Financial Viability and Management

• Good Governance and Public Participation

• Cross Cutting (Spatial and Environmental)

The summary is based on the analysis done by the performance management unit, on the departmental (top structure)
SDBIPs’ annual performance reported by various departments.

The summary presents measures that were used to determine performance of the departments against the set KPIs.  This
means the unit looked at the status of each KPI per department in relation to annual targets.

The analysis was based on what was reported against the evidence received.  Thus the following categories informed
the analysis and hence the summary (See examples for clarity):

žpq₡tdahidt˙¡₡pRppžx˜Rpd˜udžwtdpRpp₡̄ šxšdłt¡˜łž

Analysis Example

Targets met A target to build 850 houses = 850 [or more] houses built and handed over 

Targets not met A target to build 850 houses = 0  houses built

Targets partially met A target to build 850 houses = less than the targeted houses [there are houses 
built and handed over even though the target was not reached for this particular KPI]

Not reported No report/ data received on that particular KPI

No evidence Achievement is reported but no there was no evidence to support the report for 
some KPIs

The municipality has 155 KPIs.  Therefore the PMS unit first verified and analysed the different departmental SDBIPs then
consolidated the results to illustrate the municipal picture in relation to implementation of the strategic objectives and
the KPIs.
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More than 50% KPIs were achieved in the financial year
under review.

The issues and challenges that resulted to targets that
were either partially achieved or not achieved have been
reported and measures for improvement have been
presented in section one of this report.  

a₎`dž⁵⅔d˜⁰ñ⅞⅔d₂⁰d₇⁵⅔d1₈₁⁶⅞⁶₃⅜⁹d1⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₅

The SDBIP report received with all columns populated.
POE checked and referenced accordingly against
evidence received.

v₅⅜₃⁵daid¡⅔₅⁰₂₅₀⅜₁⅞⅔d₂⁰d˜11d

Office of the Municipal Manager is in a nutshell the
operations office of the municipality.  All the governance
functions as well as the functions of the Mayor’s Office
are carried out by staff working in the Office of the
Municipal Manager.

The OMM has a total of 49 KPIs and the graph above
depicts the achievements of the office in the financial
year under review. This department achieved 61% of its
set targets.

With all the partially achieved targets, there has been
work in progress, for instance for the monthly ward
committee meetings, the annual target is 144, however

only 62 was achieved.  This was due to the fact that
some reports were not received from some wards.  To
improve on this in the future, a policy and plan of action
have been put in place to ensure full submission of
reports and to ensure that meetings are convened.
Some of the consequences for non-reporting and no
meetings include a hold in the stipends.  The speaker is
also addressing the issue raised as challenges.

The targets not achieved will be carried over to the next
financial year.
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The SDBIP report received with all columns populated.
POE checked and referenced accordingly against
evidence received.
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The Corporate Services Department has a total of 23
KPIs and the graph above depicts the achievements of
the office in the financial year under review.  This
department achieved 52% of the set targets (in relation
to the KPIs).

With all the partially achieved targets as well as those
not met, the Department has indicated measures for
improvement as reported in section one of this annual
performance report
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The SDBIP report received with all columns populated.
POE checked and referenced accordingly against
evidence received (some to be furnished later).

The summary of the Department’s performance is
presented below.
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The Economic Development and Planning Department
has a total of 26 KPIs and the graph above depicts the
achievements of the office in the financial year under
review. This department only achieved 50% of the set
targets (in relation to the KPIs).

With all the partially achieved targets as well as those
not met, the Department has indicated measures for
improvement as reported in section one of this annual
performance report.

a₎cdr₂₀₀₈₁⁶₇.dš⅔₅₉⁶⅞⅔₆

The SDBIP report received with all columns populated.
POE checked and referenced accordingly against
evidence received.

The summary of the Department’s performance is
presented below.
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The Community Services Department has a total of 25
KPIs and the graph above depicts the achievements of
the office in the financial year under review.

With all the partially achieved targets as well as those
not met, the Department has indicated measures for
improvement as reported in section one of this annual
performance report.  
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The SDBIP report received with all columns populated.
POE checked and referenced accordingly against
evidence received.

The summary of the Department’s performance is
presented below.
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The Technical Services Department has a total of 19
KPIs and the graph above depicts the achievements of
the office in the financial year under review.  This
department achieved 63% of the set targets (in relation
to the KPIs).

With all the partially achieved targets as well as those
not met, the Department has indicated measures for
improvement as reported in section one of this annual
performance report.  
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The department has only achieved 38% of the set
targets (in relation to the 13 KPIs).  The targets not
achieved in this department are all related to procedure
manuals and administrative control systems.  
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Legal form of entity UMNGENI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

Mayoral committee

Mayor Mrs MP Myeni

Councillors Cllr TP Mchunu

Cllr SR Majozi 

Cllr PA Passmoor 

Cllr STJ Ndlovu

Cllr MJ Gruenberg 

Cllr SK Pillay

Cllr GT Dlamini 

Cllr SD Nkuna 

Cllr JE Holmes 

Cllr TG Nxele 

Cllr NN Mlotshwa 

Cllr BA Zuma 

Cllr Ndlela

Cllr TA Duggan 

Cllr FT Cele 

Cllr CRW Millar 

Cllr NJ Lewis

Cllr FG Mthembu 

Cllr JM Zondi 

Cllr LP Phikwane 

Cllr JA Mkhasibe 

Cllr SM Ndlovu

Grading of local authority 3

Acting Accounting Officer Mr S Simpson

Chief Financial Officer Mr ZS Gwala

Registered office Corner Dicks and Somme Streets 

Howick

3290

Postal address P O Box 5

Howick 3290

Banker ABSA Bank

Auditor Auditor General
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I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on pages 74 to 127 in terms
of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which I have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors, loans made to Councillors, if any, and payments made
to Councillors for loss of office, if any, as disclosed in note 31 of these annual financial statements are within the upper
limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers
Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government’s determination in accordance with this Act.

Mrs G Gumbi Masilela 
Acting Municipal Manager 
Monday, November 23, 2015

x₁⅓⅔$
Page

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 73

Approval of Annual Financial Statements 72

Statement of Financial Position 74

Statement of Financial Performance 75

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 76

Cash Flow Statement 77

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 78

Accounting Policies 79 - 94

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 95 - 127

Report of the Auditor General 128 - 130

p⅝⅝₅⅔₉⁶⅜₇⁶₂₁₆
COID Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases

CRR Capital Replacement Reserve

DBSA Development Bank of South Africa

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practice

HDF Housing Development Fund

IAS International Accounting Standards

IMFO Institute of Municipal Finance Officers

IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards

ME's Municipal Entities

MEC Member of the Executive Council

MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act

MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant (Previously CMIP)
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The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present
the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the
period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements
and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in terms of GRAP as a going concern. This framework presumes that funds
will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of
these are:

Bi weekly meetings in the form of the Interim Finance Committee, to plan and approve only essential expenditure for the forth-
coming weeks and to ensure that the unspent conditional grants are moving to a position of being cash backed.

Two other committees have also being formed after Provincial Treasury provided support to help the Municipality recover from
the cash flow challenges it faced. The Credit control and Valuation sub-committees met monthly to tackle revenue enhancement
issues by addressing the issue of outstanding debtors and valuation queries respectively. These committees have already
achieved success by requesting all stakeholders involved in revenue enhancement to account monthly and provide direction
on how to maximise revenue and reduce the outstanding debtors.

Council and the Interim Finance committee were committed to turning the situation around and in the process froze all vacant
posts in order to curb expenditure, except critical posts or those funded by the conditional grants. There is also an action plan
to further reduce expenditure and implement cost-cutting measures to aid financial recovery. Council still has to adopt the plan.

On the technical side, excess electricity losses have been identified and corrective actions were initiated to remedy the situation
through the Development of Consumer loss Analysis programme (CLA). This programme was specifically written to identify the
electricity losses due to technical issues, theft of electricity, illegal connections, and metered installations and correct the
electricity billing cycle.

The accounting officer acknowledges that the ultimatel responsibility for the system of internal financial control established by the
municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment lies with him to enable the accounting
officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or
deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards included the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure acceptable level of risk. These controls
were monitored throughout the municipality and all employees were required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring
the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances wasa above reproach. Risk management
and mitigation were effectively dealt with. While operating risk could be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavoured to minimise
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predeter-
mined procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provided reasonable assurance that the financial records could be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. The accounting officer reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to June 30, 2016 and,
in the light of this review and the current financial position, was satisfied that the municipality had adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipality's annual financial statements..

The annual financial statements set out on pages 74 to 127, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

Mr S Simpson
Acting Municipal Manager
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ł⅔₃₂₅₇d₂⁰d₇⁵⅔dp₈⅓⁶₇₂₅₍v⅔₁⅔₅⅜⁹d₇₂d₇⁵⅔dz¢⅜‒₈⁹₈₍Rp⅜₇⅜⁹d¡₅₂₉⁶₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d₡⅔⁴⁶₆⁹⅜₇₈₅⅔d⅜₁⅓d₇⁵⅔
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łt¡˜łžd˜RpdžwtduxRppRprxp₡dšžpžt1tRpžš

x₁₇₅₂⅓₈⅞₇⁶₂₁

1. I have audited the financial statements of the uMngeni Municipality set out on pages 74 to 127, which comprise,
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget information with actual
information for the year then ended as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information. 

p⅞⅞₂₈₁₇⁶₁⁴d₂⁰⁰⁶⅞⅔₅r₆d₅⅔₆₃₂₁₆⁶⅝⁶⁹⁶₇.d⁰₂₅d₇⁵⅔d⁰⁶₁⅜₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d₆₇⅜₇⅔₀⅔₁₇₆

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accor-
dance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of
2003) (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2014 (Act No. 10 of 2014) (DoRA), and for such internal
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

p₈⅓⁶₇₂₅₍v⅔₁⅔₅⅜⁹r₆d₅⅔₆₃₂₁₆⁶⅝⁶⁹⁶₇.

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit.  I conducted my audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the municipality’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipality’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

˜₃⁶₁⁶₂₁d

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the uMngeni
Municipality as at 30 June 2015, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and DoRA.

t₀₃⁵⅜₆⁶₆d₂⁰d₀⅜₇₇⅔₅₆

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

1⅜₇⅔₅⁶⅜⁹d⁹₂₆₆⅔₆ˆ⁶₀₃⅜⁶₅₀⅔₁₇₆

7. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2012 have been
restated as a result of an error discovered during 30 June 2013 in the financial statements of the uMngeni Munic-
ipality at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2012.

8. Consumer debtors as per note 10 and receivables from non-exchange transactions as per note 11 were impaired
to the amount of R27,57 million (2014: R32,33 million) and R10,88 million), respectively, as a result of poor
collection of outstanding debts.
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łt¡˜łžd˜Rpd˜žwtłd₡tvp₡dpRpsdłtv¨₡pž˜ł¯dłt¢¨xłt1tRpžš

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)(PAA) and the general notice
issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information
against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report,
compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings
as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters.
Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

¡₅⅔⅓⅔₇⅔₅₀⁶₁⅔⅓d₂⅝⁷⅔⅞₇⁶₉⅔₆

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for Development objective C: Economic infrastructure development and maintenance presented in
the annual performance report of the municipality for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

11. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in
accordance with the National treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was
consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets
were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National
treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI). 

13. I assessed the reliability of the reported information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

14. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
of the Development objective C: Economic infrastructure development and maintenance.

p⅓⅓⁶₇⁶₂₁⅜⁹d₀⅜₇₇⅔₅₆

15. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information
for the selected objectives, I draw attention to the following matters:

p⅞⁵⁶⅔₉⅔₀⅔₁₇d₂⁰d₃⁹⅜₁₁⅔⅓d₇⅜₅⁴⅔₇₆

16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 74 to 75 for information on the achievement of the planned
targets for the year.

p⅓⁷₈₆₇₀⅔₁₇d₂⁰d₀⅜₇⅔₅⁶⅜⁹d₀⁶₆₆₇⅜₇⅔₀⅔₁₇₆

17. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on the reported
performance information for Development objective C: Economic infrastructure development and maintenance.
As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not identify any material findings on the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information.

r₂₀₃⁹⁶⅜₁⅞⅔d¢⁶₇⁵d⁹⅔⁴⁶₆⁹⅜₇⁶₂₁

18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the general notice issued
in terms of the PAA are as follows: 

p₁₁₈⅜⁹d⁰⁶₁⅜₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d₆₇⅜₇⅔₀⅔₁₇₆

19. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
requirements of section 122 of the MFMA.  Material misstatements of non-current assets, liabilities, expenditure
and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently corrected
and the supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an
unqualified audit opinion.
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¡₅₂⅞₈₅⅔₀⅔₁₇d⅜₁⅓d⅞₂₁₇₅⅜⅞₇d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇

20. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that goods and services of a transaction value above
R200 000 were procured by means of inviting competitive bids as required by Supply chain management (SCM)
regulation 19(a) and 36(1).

21. Invitations for competitive bidding were not always advertised for a required minimum period of days, as required
by SCM regulation 22(1) & 22 (2).

w₈₀⅜₁d₅⅔₆₂₈₅⅞⅔d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇d⅜₁⅓d⅞₂₀₃⅔₁₆⅜₇⁶₂₁

22. The senior managers directly accountable to the municipal manager did not sign performance agreements, as
required by section 57 (2)a of the Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act No.32 of 2000).

t$₃⅔₁⅓⁶₇₈₅⅔d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇

23. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 62(1) (d) of the MFMA.

₡⁶⅜⅝⁶⁹⁶₇.d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇d

24. An effective system of internal control for liabilities (including a liability register) was not in place, as required by
section 63(2)(c) of the MFMA.

r₂₁₆⅔₄₈⅔₁⅞⅔d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇d

25. Irregular expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the
expenditure, as required by section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA.

x₁₇⅔₅₁⅜⁹d⅞₂₁₇₅₂⁹d

26. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and
compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies
that resulted in findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

₡⅔⅜⅓⅔₅₆⁵⁶₃

27. The instability of critical vacancies have had a direct impact on the oversight function performed by the
leadership resulting in material misstatements in the initially submitted financial statements, repeat findings in
certain areas as well as material findings on non-compliance as reported in the compliance section of this report.

u⁶₁⅜₁⅞⁶⅜⁹d⅜₁⅓d₃⅔₅⁰₂₅₀⅜₁⅞⅔d₀⅜₁⅜⁴⅔₀⅔₁₇

28. The system of daily and monthly controls was not adequate to support accurate financial and performance
reporting. The control environment was not designed to enable the reconciliation processes in certain areas of
being performed.

Pietermaritzburg

27 November 2015



r₂₁⅞⁹₈₆⁶₂₁

The Annual Performance Report 2014/2015 presents a
positive reflection of the Municipality’s performance/ 

achievements based on the basic service delivery general
KPIs as per the Municipal Planning and Performance 

Regulations (chapter 3).  Furthermore, the progress made 
on performance reporting by the different departments is

commendable, even though there is still room for
improvement.

The biggest challenge reported is staff shortage.  This is
closely linked to the gaps (vacancies and omission) in the
current organisational structure.  This therefore is a clear

indication that the Management Committee through Council,
needs to revise and implement a new, all-encompassing

organisational structure.

Finally, as the next financial year marks the end of term of
office for the current Council, it is essential that performance

management system is revised and improved to ensure that it
measures impact of the services delivered in the five years’
period.  This means including impact assessment (including

customer surveys) in the ensuing financial year.

`b`
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